
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Democratic 
Services Officer on 01432 383690 or e-mail 
dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Monday 6 December 2010 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Community 
Services Scrutiny Committee 
  

Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor TM James 
Vice-Chairman Councillor KG Grumbley 

  

Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor BA Durkin HALC 
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor MAF Hubbard  
Councillor B Hunt  
Councillor SJ Robertson  
Councillor RH Smith  
Councillor AP Taylor  
  

 
Mrs Gillian Churchill HALC 
Mrs. J. Evans National Farmers Union 
Mr Gary Woodman Hereford and Worcester Chamber of 

Commerce 
 
 

  Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  6 DECEMBER 2010 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 12  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2010.  
   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT   13 - 20  
   
 To advise the Committee of the revenue forecast outturn position for 

Community Services as at 30th September 2010 and the progress of the 
2010/11 Capital Programme which falls within the portfolio for Community 
Services 

 

   
7. PERFORMANCE OUT-TURN UP TO THE END OF SEPTEMBER 2010   21 - 32  
   
 To provide a report on the outturns for key national performance indicator 

targets for services under the committees remit. This report has used the 
same format as used previously, and now incorporates the adopted 
performance rating system being used in the new corporate performance 
report for Cabinet; an explanation of the ratings is shown at Appendix A. 

 

   
8. REVIEW OF THIRD SECTOR SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES   33 - 116  
   
 To consult on the proposals contained within the Review of Third Sector 

Support and Development Services and its overall objective to achieve 
consensus on the future provision of services, resources and delivery. 

 

   
9. EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW 

OF SUPPORT FOR VOLUNTEERING   
117 - 124  

   
 To consider the Executive’s response to the Review of Volunteering 

conducted by the Community Services Scrutiny Committee. 
 

   
10. PROGRESS REPORT FROM THE SAFER HEREFORDSHIRE SCRUTINY 

REVIEW GROUP   
125 - 128  

   
 To provide a summary of the evidence the Review Group has received and 

to set out the considered findings and recommendations to the Committee. 
 

   
11. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   129 - 132  
   
 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  
   
12. EDGAR STREET GRID - UPDATE   133 - 134  
   
 To receive a report on the progress made with the Edgar Street Grid project.  





PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 

before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 

by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee to investigate, however, there will be no discussion of 
the issue at the time when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research 
the issue and consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 
Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located at 
the southern entrance to the circular car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod 
Road, Hereford on Monday 15 November 2010 at 1.30 pm 
  

Present: Councillor TM James (Chairman) 
Councillor KG Grumbley (Vice Chairman) 

   
 
 
 
Co-opted 

Councillors: WLS Bowen, GFM Dawe, JHR Goodwin, DW Greenow, KS Guthrie, 
MAF Hubbard and RH Smith 
 
Mrs G Churchill (HALC) 

 

  
In attendance: Councillors AJM Blackshaw and MD Lloyd-Hayes 
  
31. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies were received from Councillors PL Bettington, B Durkin and SJ Robertson. 
 

32. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 

Councillor JHR Goodwin substituted for Councillor PL Bettington and Councillor WLS Bowen 
for Councillor SJ Robertson. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

Name Item Interest 
Cllr MAF Hubbard 6 – Scrutiny Review of the 

Strategic Direction of the Edgar 
Street Grid Project 

Director of a not for profit 
campaigning organisation, 
It’s Our City 

 
34. MINUTES   

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes for the meeting held on 8th October 2010 be approved 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

35. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 
SCRUTINY   
 

There were no suggestions. 
 

36. REVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTION OF THE EDGAR STREET GRID PROJECT   
 

The Chairman welcomed Members to the meeting and said that this would be an information 
gathering process, with the intention of producing a report to be approved by the Committee 
at its next meeting.  The meeting would adjourn once the evidence from those involved in 
commissioning and delivering the project had been heard, and would reconvene at 09.30 on 
the 16th November in order to hear further representations from stakeholders. 
 

The Chief Executive, Herefordshire Futures Ltd provided a presentation, which covered a 
number of areas: 
 

• That Herefordshire Futures Ltd had a much wider remit than ESG Hereford Ltd, and 
had assembled a Board of Directors with the expertise to push projects forward 
across the City.  The company’s role was to take strategic ideas from the Council, 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



 

consider the feasibility of them with the Board, and deliver them, at the request of 
the Council, with a mixture of public and private funding. 

 

• That the original Masterplan for the Edgar Street Grid site produced in 2004 had 
proved unpopular with the Commission for the Built Environment (CABE) and 
English Heritage.  Greater liaison with both of these bodies had resulted in a 
greatly improved plan produced by ESG Herefordshire Ltd in 2007which had 
been, following consultation, adopted by the Council in 2008. 

 

• That the Urban Village was a fundamental part of the Masterplan, and was being 
formulated with long term, sustainable objectives. 

 

• That the Old Livestock Market area was a natural extension of the City centre, 
with a design that would tie it in to the existing City.  There was an emphasis on 
retail and leisure at the southern of the site, which would then blend with the 
residential area of the Urban Village to the south east of the site. 

 

• There would be a development opportunity for Hereford United, which could 
include additional fast food outlets on the ground floor of the Football Club, and 
possible student accommodation or a budget hotel. 

 

• A Higher Education (HE) Centre would be developed on the Blackfriars site.  In 
addition to HE provision, the Centre would facilitate business use, with auditoria 
suitable for conferences.  There would be remote linkages to other colleges that 
would allow local students to study for degrees elsewhere in the Country.   

 

• Additional cable ducts would be laid below new roads and pavements to facilitate 
broadband requirements on the site. 

 

• The Flood Alleviation Scheme which was designed to help prevent the City being 
flooded by waters from the Yazor Brook had been agreed with the National Trust, 
and would consist of a 2 metre bore pipe that would take flood waters from the 
brook safely into the Wye.  The scheme had received planning permission. 

 

• As part of the business relocation process from the route of the Link Road, 
monthly meetings were now being held with the businesses, and there was now 
a single point of contact with them. The existing Livestock businesses still located 
on the Old Livestock Market Site were updated on progress by the Council, whilst 
Hereford Futures dealt with those on the Link Road. 

 

• Additional funding was being sought from the Marches Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP), one of only twenty two LEPs approved nationally. The LEP 
would be bidding for funding from the new Regional Growth fund and 
expressions of interest were now being developed for a number of schemes, 
including one for the Three Elms Industrial Site.  The LEP had also made a pitch 
for assets in Herefordshire currently owned by the Regional Development 
Agency. 

 

• In terms of the Butter Market competition, final submissions would be made by 
the 19 November, and the scheme would go out for public consultation.  
Developers would be invited to tender, and a preferred developer would be 
appointed in the Spring of 2011.  The developer would be encouraged to work 
with the winner of the design process. 

 

Following his presentation the following points were made in discussion: 
 

• That the existing Livestock Market provision was no longer appropriate for the 
needs of the County, and that the principal New Market was a high quality 
investment in the future for the agricultural community,  and was the sort of 
investment that was not being made elsewhere in the country.  Three businesses 

2



 

were already considering moving to the site.  As a result of a restrictive covenant 
from the Church Commissioners, only businesses that were associated with 
agriculture would be permitted to relocate to the new site. 

 

• A Member said that he believed that as the Retail scheme had been scaled 
down, it was important that it should get underway as soon as possible if it was 
not to suffer the same fate as Newport, Gwent, scheme.  The anchor stores had 
pulled out of this scheme, which had collapsed, and the major retailers had gone 
into out of town Retail Park. Major investment in the City centre was required in 
order to prevent this happening in Hereford. 

 

• In reply to a question from a Member, the Director of Sustainable Communities 
said that a large amount of capital had already been drawn down from Advantage 
West Midlands (AWM), and that funding allocated by AWM would continue to 
meet the costs of the Flood Alleviation Scheme.  AWM could not provide funding 
for the Link Road. The new Regional Growth Fund could, however, be an option 
to bridge the funding gap. 

 

• A Member suggested that it was appropriate that a briefing note should be 
provided to the Committee with answers to the first four questions in the Scoping 
Statement for the Review. 

 

• The Cabinet Member (Economic Development and Community Services) added 
that the development of the Local Enterprise Partnerships had been undertaken 
with little national guidance, but it was hoped that the new body would play a vital 
role in administering existing funds, as well as accessing new European Union 
Funds.  Negotiations over the role of the LEP were still in hand. 

 

The Chairman thanked the Chief Executive, Hereford Futures Ltd for his presentation. 
 

Mr G Bourne, Development Director, Stanhope plc provided a presentation and a 
briefing note for the Committee on the company’s vision for the Old Cattle Market Site. 
 

In his presentation, a number of issues were addressed: 
 

• In response to concerns that had been expressed, the retail scheme was now 
smaller than initially envisaged, having been reduced from 4-500k to 300k square 
feet.  There would be 30 units which would provide 20 new retail outlets.  This 
was insufficient to provide a shopping destination in isolation, and would 
therefore encourage shoppers to go to the City centre in order to widen their 
shopping experience. The scale of the scheme was appropriate, and of a 
sufficient quality to attract people to the City. 

 

• Retail provision would be complementary to the existing City centre, and the 
scheme as a whole would be further to the south of the site, ensuring it was 
closer to the City wall. It would provide support for the City centre, and a boost for 
Eign Gate. 

 

• There would be a major department store with high visibility on the corner of the 
site, and a small supermarket as well as a six screen multiplex Odeon cinema.  
There was a high degree of leakage of retail spend to neighbouring towns, with 
local people prepared to drive to Worcester to see a film.  It was important to 
have a stylish cinema which could also be used for business purposes.  Better 
quality car parking had been requested, so rooftop car parking had been 
extended. 

 
• The public consultation exercise undertaken in High Town had been successful, 

with over 3,000 people involved.  Of those who were consulted, 79% were in 
favour of the design principles, and 75% supported the overall scheme.   

3



 

 
• The three anchor store pre-lets for the scheme would be announced by 

Christmas, and a planning application would be submitted by the first week of 
December. 

 

In the ensuing discussion, the following points were made: 
 

• In reply to a Member’s concern that the rural areas had not been sufficiently 
consulted, Mr Bourne said that in order to further engage Herefordshire 
residents, 12,000 flyers had been sent to homes, letters and emails had been 
sent to 3,000 stakeholders, and adverts had been taken out in local newspapers. 

 

• A Member stated that he had attended the consultation in High Town, and 
agreed that shoppers were supportive of the need for more shops, but pointed 
out that many also felt that these shops were being sited in the wrong place.  The 
forms that had been used had been insufficiently sophisticated to allow members 
of the public to express their concerns about the scheme.  There were a lot of 
concerned people in the City, as well as a lot of people who just wanted the 
scheme to get underway. Mr A Shaw, Development Director, Stanhope plc 
replied that issues that had been raised were less about where the shops were 
sited, but more about issues that were not the responsibility of Stanhope. 

 

• The proposed pedestrian access from the site through the Tesco’s site on Bewell 
Street to the City centre was being discussed with the Council’s Highway’s Team 
at the moment, and a plan to show how it could be facilitated and improved would 
be produced shortly.  The presence of the Department store at that end of the 
site would help improve both the nature and standard of this aspect of the 
connectivity from the site.  The multiscreen cinema would also have a major 
impact on footfall to the site, and the catchment of the cinema would extend over 
the County boundary. 

 

• In reply to concerns expressed about the fact that the public might not be aware 
that the inner ring road would still be in place when the scheme was operational, 
and that no cars were shown on the diagrams of the scheme, Mr Shaw said that 
the absence of cars from the art work had been a mistake which had been 
acknowledged, but added that the enhancement of the existing crossings that 
were used by pedestrians would greatly aid connectivity to the City centre. 

 

• The Chairman stated that it was desirable for the link road to be a first priority 
and that it should be delivered on time, preferably before the Old Cattle Market. 

 
The Chairman thanked Mr Shaw and Mr Bourne for their presentation. 
 

Mr G Scannell and Mr A White of Sanctuary Housing provided a presentation on the 
Urban Village.  During the presentation, the following points were made: 
 

• That as Sanctuary Housing were a Registered Social Landlord (RSL) rather than 
a developer, the nature of the project would differ from a normal development of 
this size, as surpluses from the project would be reinvested into it, and there 
would be long term investment in the scheme by Sanctuary Housing.   

 

• Covenants would be in place to provide a stewardship vehicle to run the site, 
along the same lines as the Bourneville Village Trust in Birmingham.   The Board 
of Directors would initially be made up of Stanhope, the Council and Sanctuary 
Housing, and residents would gradually become involved in the running of the 
Board as the scheme matured. The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) saw 
this development as a key regional priority, a testament to what had so far been 
achieved. 

 

4



 

• Sanctuary would not build the houses themselves, but would sell parcels of land 
to developers to produce houses under a strict design brief.  There had been a 
great deal of consultation with local architects, and any design brief would rely 
heavily on the local vernacular architecture.  The intention was that houses would 
be built sustainably to the Department of Local Government and Communities 
Code Level 4, rather than Level 3, the minimum standard to which houses were 
currently built.  Level 4 is the maximum standard that could be delivered within 
the financial parameters of the scheme. 

 

• The Masterplan had been updated to encourage the use of open spaces, and 
there would be communal green spaces running both east and west and north 
and south on the site.  On-site flood alleviation had also been included, to ensure 
that surface standing water could be dealt with.  The canal basin would be an 
integral part of the design, and would provide waterfront homes within the 
scheme and encourage tourism to the City.  It was intended that a planning 
application would be submitted by the autumn of 2011. 

 
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were made: 
 

• That phase 1 of the Link Road would receive more funding from the Urban 
Village scheme as a result of land being in Council ownership than the later 
sections of the road project. 

 

• In reply to a question from a Member, Mr White said that it was intended that 
construction should begin on the project within two years of a planning 
application, and work should therefore begin on site by the autumn of 2013.  The 
numbers of houses that would be available for social rent and shared ownership 
had not yet been set, and there would be a detailed review of the demand for 
each type of property.  Whilst shared ownership schemes did have their 
detractors, they were the only way for many people to get onto the housing 
ladder.  Some of the key risks for the project were the outcome of the 
Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review, and what Sanctuary would be 
able to deliver to the local market without government involvement.  The intention 
was to deliver the greatest number of sustainable houses. 

 

• In reply to an additional question, Mr White said that houses would be available 
on a part buy and part tenancy basis, and shared ownership would be available 
for up to 100% of the affordable housing on the site.  Profits made on sales would 
be reinvested within the village boundary.  The standard of housing would be 
higher than that of the local area standards, and it would be a mix of family 
homes and flats for single people.  There would be a mix of public and private 
space, as well as play areas.  There would be provision for car parking. 

 

• Section 106 levels would be set by the Council, and would be at a different level 
within the Edgar Street Grid Project area than elsewhere in Hereford.  These 
levels had yet to be set.  The project would be design and social housing led, 
with a complex mix of funding streams.  65% of the housing product would be 
available on the open market.  

 

• That the Canal basin had been placed where it was in the current Masterplan, as 
it was significantly cheaper to build it north of the Link Road. 

 
The Chairman thanked Mr Scannell and Mr White for their presentation. 
 

The Committee received a report on the Flood Alleviation Scheme.  The Construction 
Manager reported that the Yazor Brook Flood Alleviation Scheme (FAS) comprised a 1.4 
km long buried culvert to divert Yazor Brook flood waters, direct to the River Wye from 
Credenhill. The project would reduce significantly the instances of flooding downstream, 
particularly within the northern built-up part of the city. Beneficiaries of the FAS included 

5



 

housing and commercial/employment areas, public open space, allotments, and areas of 
car parking (including the County Hospital).  Transport links within the City, including the 
A438 and the A49 trunk road would also benefit.  Upstream, the flood risk to large areas 
of agricultural land and scattered property would also be alleviated. 
 

In reply to a question from a Member, the Strategic Delivery Manager said that whilst 
flood waters from the Yazor Brook would reach the Wye at an earlier point than they did 
at present, any effect from this would be negligible.  The Yazor Brook flooding events 
were different from those in the Wye, as the Brook rose and fell much faster than the 
river, and the catchment area was much smaller.  The scheme had been closely 
scrutinised, and was supported by the Environment Agency. 

The Committee received a background information report concerning the integration of 
the design for the site with the historic City Centre.  The Strategic Delivery Manager 
reported that the principle of ensuring integration between the ESG area and the historic 
city centre to the south, and addressing the barrier that the inner ring road represented, 
had been key to the consideration of the project since its inception. The Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) policies reflected the importance of securing effective 
integration both within and without the ESG project area. 

In reply to a question from a Member regarding the additional volume of traffic that would 
be generated by the development, the Strategic Delivery Manager said that any planning 
application from Stanhope plc would have to have a full traffic assessment, and would 
have to provide a scheme that worked on the existing highway network. 

In reply to a further question, the Chief Executive, Hereford Futures Ltd reported that any 
plans for a library on the site would be a matter for Herefordshire Council, but it was 
intended that the library in Hereford would remain on its present site in Broad Street, as 
part of the heritage tourism offer around the Cathedral.  The Director of Sustainable 
Development added that there was no funding available for a new library building on the 
ESG site, and consideration was being given to what could be done with the existing 
library site. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 16.45 and reconvened at 09.30 on 16th November 2010. 
 

The Chairman welcomed the Committee and invited Mr S Kerry, the Town Clerk of 
Hereford City Council to give his evidence. 
 

Mr S Kerry provided a statement on behalf of Hereford City Council.  He affirmed that he 
was authorised to represent the Council as part of his role as long as his comments were 
broadly in line with the Council's viewpoint. 
 

Mr Kerry said that there was a broad consensus of support for the development amongst 
City Councillors, and that this support could be broken down into four main areas: 
 

• That no large retailers should be in a position to leave High Town in favour of the 
new site.  It was important that the development should provide a new offer for 
the City, and not undermine the existing one.  He questioned how much power 
the Herefordshire Council had to enforce its stated intention to prevent existing 
retailers from moving from High Town. 

 

• The issue that should be at the forefront was a reduction of traffic, rather than a 
change to where the traffic was directed.  There would be no benefit to the City if 
the traffic that had previously flowed along Blue School Street was merely to be 
redirected down Commercial Road.  Traffic modelling would have to be robust 
and well tested.  It was crucial that the Link Road should be in operation before 
the Development, which would otherwise be impaired. 

 

6



 

• That there should be careful support to those businesses that would be affected 
whilst the work was undertaken in order to ensure the minimum of disruption to 
those in the City centre.  Whilst it was obviously difficult to get into the operational 
base of every business, disruption of amenities and access should be kept to a 
minimum, as far as possible. 

 

• With regard to the Urban Village, he pointed out that the housing market was 
currently depressed, and public funding would be in short supply over the coming 
years.   The City Council were concerned as to the viability of the scheme, as 
well as the order of delivery of the project.  There was concern that a retail 
development would be delivered which would be bordered by an empty site until 
funds became available for the Urban Village.  Clarity and transparency were 
required for the delivery of the project, and to reassure the City that sufficient 
funds were available. 

 
The Chief Executive, Hereford Futures replied to the issues that had been raised.  He 
said: 
 

• That through the planning process, retailers were entitled to expect that Local 
Authorities would provide sufficient capacity for business expansion, but there 
was a clear caveat that retailers should be prepared to be flexible in the way that 
they conducted their business.  Under planning legislation, there was a 
sequential test that obliged retailers to locate as close to a city centre as 
possible.  Herefordshire Council had been very effective at defending the City 
centre from the relocation of retailers.  The sequential test was also an effective 
mechanism to ensure that new retailers would be obliged to look first to High 
Town or the Old Cattle Market Site rather than opening an out of town outlet on 
Holmer Road.  As far as the Cattle Market was concerned, the protection 
negotiated in the development agreement with Stanhope could only be extended 
to first lettings with the project. 

 

• That there were contractual clauses within the agreement with Stanhope that 
prevented them from cherry picking retail tenants from within the City although 
the agreement did allow two named retailers to relocate who would otherwise 
have left the City centre.  Should other large retailers be interested in coming into 
the City, the same sequential test would ensure that they would be obliged to 
open as near to the centre as was practicable.   

 

• The Cabinet Member (Economic Development and Community Services) added 
that Marks and Spencer had recently spent £7m on refurbishing their food hall, 
which was a significant commitment to the City centre.  He went on to say that 
this was one of the few urban regeneration projects begun in the UK before the 
recession that had managed to survive the economic down turn.  It was important 
to get shoppers back into Hereford, and shops in High Town were filling up in 
anticipation of the Old Cattle Market project.  He was confident that it would be 
possible to sustainably deliver the regeneration of the City. 

 

• Funds were being sought from a complex package of sources which included 
European Union funding sources, prudential borrowing, infrastructure levies and 
Section 106 monies.   

 

• In reply to a question from a Member, the Chief Executive, Hereford Futures Ltd 
said that Section 106 funds were likely to be the smallest part of the funding 
package.  Phase 1 of the Link Road would be delivered with a complex package 
of funds, whilst Phase 2 would utilise Homes and Communities (HCA) and LEP 
investment.  Phase 3 was more challenging at this stage.  Whilst it was important 
that the Link Road should be built before the Urban Village was complete, it 
would be possible to start work on the Village without the road. 

 

7



 

• A Member suggested that the Committee should regularly consider specific 
reports on overall timing and financing of the project as the issues arose. 

 

• That the retail scheme had not been reduced because of a lack of demand, but 
as a result of consultation with residents in the City.  The demand for retail units 
was there, and whilst there was a small amount of space available for further 
expansion, there were no immediate plans for a second phase of retail 
development at this point.  

 

• There was no prospect of the City not having busy roads, but the aim of the 
project was not to solve the city traffic problems, as that would be the job of the 
outer relief road.  Traffic management was a hugely complex issue.  However, it 
was anticipated that the reconfiguration of the Edgar Street Grid Roundabout by 
Stanhope would result in an 11% reduction of traffic at that junction.  It was 
intended that the scheme would be self mitigating, but it was not a traffic solving 
project. 

 

The Committee noted a written representation that had been received from the Hereford 
and Worcester Chamber of Commerce. 
 
Mr G Thomas, Chairman of the Hereford Civic Society, provided a presentation.  In the 
course of his presentation the following points were made: 
 

• That the Society believed that the consultations undertaken by Herefordshire 
Council and Herefordshire Futures Ltd had not been adequate.  He suggested 
that this view had been supported by a document prepared in July 2010 by the 
Council’s Research Team entitled Local Development Framework - Place 
Shaping Paper Results Report, July 2010.   As a consequence, the Society 
believed that the project would fail to meet the needs of the community, as large 
sections of that community, most particularly the hard to reach groups, had not 
been adequately consulted concerning the project.  The amount and quality of 
consultation meant that the project was not sustainable. This criticism could also 
be applied to the UDP and LDF consultation processes.  If the consultation had 
been inadequate, then the Council should go one step further and consider 
alternative ways of consulting in order to make it easier for the community to 
engage with the process. 

 

• The Director of Sustainable Communities replied that the UDP and LDF 
consultations had been carried out exhaustively, and that various consultations 
took place in different periods of the process, which would provide different levels 
of results.  A greater level of response to the UDP and LDF consultation 
processes had been recorded in the County than in the rest of the Country. 

 

• The Cabinet Member (Economic Development and Community Services) 
supported these comments, and added that he did not believe that the quality of 
consultation was at fault.  There might be, however, an issue of consultation 
fatigue on behalf of the residents of the County. 

 

• A Member added that it could also be said that the Council had done all it could 
to consult using a variety of methods, from leaflet drops to Officer and Cabinet 
Member attendance at Parish, Town Council and PACT meetings.  He believed 
that the majority of people in the County were supportive of the project.   

 

• A Member highlighted the questions contained on page 35 of the Civic Society’s 
report: Hereford’s Regeneration, The Edgar Street Grid Project, An Assessment, 
which asked for a detailed break down of where funds had been spent on the 
project to date. He suggested that this information would aid the Committee in its 
deliberations.  

 

8



 

• A Member said that he objected to the charge that consultation had failed, not 
least because this was a direct criticism of every Councillor.  There were a 
plethora of consultations, and one of the important roles of being a Councillor 
was being able to pick out those that were important to the community. 

 

• A Member said that there was a low engagement rate with the consultation 
process, and suggested that consideration should be given to the way that 
questions were formulated to provide more open ended ones that provided 
greater information for both the Council and the potential responder. 

 
The Chairman thanked Mr Thomas for his evidence. 
 

Mr Wolverson of Rockfield DIY provided evidence to the Committee on behalf of the 
businesses on the line of the Edgar Street Grid Link Road.  In his presentation he 
highlighted the following concerns: 
 

• That the uncertainty that surrounded the future of the businesses on the route of 
the Link Road had been profoundly unsettling, and meant that it was impossible 
to make coherent business decisions in what was a very competitive 
environment.  This had been compounded by the Compulsory Purchase Order 
(CPO) powers which had been mentioned in the original Masterplan as a likely 
way forward when dealing with the north east corner of the Edgar Street Grid site 
which meant that he felt that he had been trading under the shadow of a CPO. 

 
• That there were issues associated with the way that the planning matters were 

presented.  The Link road was given planning consent as a piece of essential 
infrastructure, required before the Development could start, but it now appeared 
that there were insufficient funds to complete the project. 

 

• That Stanhope plc had decided to proceed with the development of the Retail 
Quarter, but were not prepared to take ownership of the Link Road as part of this 
project, as they did not see it as being germane to the Old Cattle Market site.  As 
a result, he believed that Stanhope representatives had mislead the public during 
their exhibition in High Town, as without the Link Road the Retail site would be 
flawed because integration with the City centre would be compromised.  He 
suggested that the planning application for the Old Cattle Market site should be 
made dependant on the Link Road, and that the road should be built first. 

 

• A meeting had been organised by the affected businesses at TGS Bowling on 15 
July.  There had been a wide ranging discussion before representatives of the 
Council and Hereford Futures had arrived, and the businesses had been asked if 
any of them felt they had been treated in a correct and professional way by either 
organisation.  Not one business had been able to say that they had. 

 

• Mr Wolverson added that he believed that the businesses had not been shown 
any of the rights that were enshrined in the Council’s own Equality and Human 
Rights Charter, a copy of which was circulated to the Committee. 

 

• ESG Herefordshire Ltd had adopted a strident attitude in the early stages of the 
project, but that the company had accepted constructive criticism, and their 
attitude to the businesses had improved markedly over the last few months. 

 

• Mr Wolverson had offered to relinquish the present site of Rockfield DIY, which 
he regarded as one of the best retail sites in the City, to be able to move to an 
equivalent site on the Old Cattle Market.  He had, however, been told by 
Stanhope that it was not appropriate for Rockfield to be on the new site.  As one 
of the largest independent retailers in the City, if Rockfield DIY were not to be 
regarded as appropriate, he questioned whether it was likely that any of the other 
local independent businesses would be invited to apply for retail units. 

9



 

 

Mrs A Holmes provided evidence to the Committee on behalf of Reprodux Printers.  She 
was deeply unhappy with the way that she had been treated both by the Council and 
ESG Herefordshire Ltd.  She said that she had been told in 2006 that she would have to 
move her company from its existing site by 2010.  The company had been told that it 
would receive compensation for the move, but not betterment.  The letter outlining the 
terms had finally been received in November 2009.  New premises had been found in 
January 2010, as she had expected to have to move in June.  Contracts and surveys 
had been undertaken when she was informed in June that there was no money to move 
the company.  She felt that the situation was intolerable, and that she had been treated 
in a most inappropriate way by the Council and ESG Herefordshire Ltd. 
 

A Member commented that consideration might be given at the next meeting as to 
whether a recommendation was needed regarding whether or not the Old Cattle Market 
development could proceed without the Link Road in place. 
 

Mr A Sanders was invited to give his evidence to the Committee.  He said that he 
supported the comments that had already been made on behalf of the businesses, and 
added that it was important that Herefordshire Futures should be given the appropriate 
tools to be able to undertake the project.  It was unclear as to how they could be 
expected to deliver the project with insufficient funding. 
 

In the ensuing discussion the following points were made: 
 

• That most of the businesses were experiencing challenging trading times, and it 
was not made any easier when the timetable for the Link Road kept moving.  
Staff recruitment and retention was proving difficult, as most felt that they had no 
control over their businesses.  

 

• That a great deal of land north of the river that had previously been used for 
businesses had now been overtaken by housing, and it meant that there was a 
paucity of land available for relocation.  Whilst Hereford Futures Ltd was 
attempting to achieve a bigger and brighter City, it should not be forgotten that 
employment was the key to the success of Hereford. 

 
• The Director of Sustainable Communities replied that whilst he accepted that 

more land did need to be allocated in the north of the City, the Rotherwas 
Industrial Estate had been expanded.  The issue was being considered as part of 
the Local Development Framework process currently being undertaken by the 
Council.  

 

• That the businesses were concerned with the way that the Hereford Futures 
launch had been handled.  The company had been trumpeted as a new entity, 
when it had the same Chief Executive, Chairman and Board of Directors as ESG 
Herefordshire Ltd.  This did not engender trust with the new entity.  The Chief 
Executive, Hereford Futures replied that the legal entity that was ESG 
Herefordshire Ltd had utilised when Hereford Futures Ltd was set up.  There 
were new Board members, and substantial changes in both the remit of the 
company and its modus operandi.  Hereford Futures also worked much more 
closely with Council Officers.  The change had been necessary not least because 
of the demise of Advantage West Midlands, which had meant that the company 
had had to be composed along different lines.   The new company was also 
much less restricted in operation than ESG Herefordshire Ltd had been.  The 
Chairman added that the apparent spin that had accompanied the launch of the 
new company had caused concern amongst Members, and asked that the press 
releases that announced the new company should be provided to the Committee.  

 

10



 

• A Member said that there was a clear message that certainty for the businesses 
was required, and whilst it was undoubtedly difficult to do this in the current 
climate, some greater level of certainty would undoubtedly help.  

 

• The Cabinet Member (Economic Development and Community Services) 
concurred, but pointed out that it was a complex regeneration project that was 
being planned in a recession to be delivered after the recession had finished.  

 

• Mr G Williams, Development Director of Hereford Futures Ltd, said that the land 
acquisition had been undertaken in a professional way, and that businesses had 
been written to in July, August and October of this year to keep them informed of 
progress.  It was normal practice that there should be negotiations in the course 
of the renewal of leases.  It was anticipated that a settlement should be reached 
shortly.  There was no compulsion for businesses to move unless they agree to 
do so, or were subject to a CPO.  He added that there had been no Council 
resolution to use CPOs for the purchase of the land on the route of the Link 
Road. 

 

• A Member said that there was a lack of clarity as to whether there was a 
corporate policy in place when dealing with negotiations with tenants.  He 
suggested that the approach to tenant businesses should be made clear in the 
corporate way that the Council dealt with businesses.  Opening gambits were 
difficult for some businesses to deal with given the history of this particular 
situation. 

 

• In reply to a question both Mrs Holmes and Mr Sanders said that whilst both had 
kept records of their expenditure over the years, neither had been promised 
compensation for the time and energy they had spent in attending meetings and 
dealing with the Council.   They had been told that professional fees would only 
be reimbursed once a settlement had been reached.  Mr Wolverson added that 
any losses incurred whilst ‘under the shadow’ of a compulsory purchase order 
(CPO) were not compensated for if no CPO was enforced. Mr Williams added 
that all professional fees would be reimbursed if the relocations were successful.  
The Cabinet Member pointed out that although the businesses should be 
supported as much as possible; the Council had a statutory duty to achieve best 
value for money. 

 

• In reply from a question from a Member, the Chief Executive, Hereford Futures 
Ltd said that whilst Mr Bourne and Mr Shaw were Directors of Stanhope plc, he 
was not aware whether they were titular or de facto Directors, and that how 
Stanhope chose to structure their company was an internal matter for that 
company.   

 

The Chairman thanked Mr Wolverson, Mrs Holmes and Mr Sanders for their evidence. 
 

The meeting ended at 1.00 pm CHAIRMAN 

11



12



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Cathy Stokes, Principal Accountant (Environment & 
Regeneration) or Shirley Coultas, Community Services Accountant (Tel: 01432 261849) 

  

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6TH DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 
REPORT 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

 
CLASSIFICATION: Open  
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To advise members of the committee of the revenue forecast outturn position for Community 
Services as at 30th September 2010 and the progress of the 2010/11 Capital Programme which falls 
within the portfolio for Community Services. 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendation 

THAT the report be noted. 

Key Points Summary 

• The current revenue forecast position for Community Services for 2010/11 is an under 
spend of £48k. 

• The capital budget for Community Services is £13,845k and as at 30th September 2010 
£1,485k has been spent. 

Key Considerations 

1 A detailed Revenue Budget Monitoring Report to 30th September 2010 is attached at 
Appendix 1 for Member’s consideration. 

2 The total Community Services Revenue budget for 2010/11 has decreased by £40k to 
£9,492k from the amount reported to the previous meeting, which was £9,532k.  This  
relates to: 

• A transfer of budget from an under spend within Parks and Countryside, to Parking 
Services, which is outside the remit of this Scrutiny Committee. This budget transfer was to 
alleviate income pressures on car parking and part of the overall budget management of the 
Sustainable Communities Directorate. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

13



• The summary position is set out in the table below and included in full in Appendix 1. 

2010/11 Annual 
Budget 

Projected 
Outturn 

Under/-Over 
spend 

Service Area £000 £000 £000 

Parks, Countryside and Leisure 3,163 3,163 0 

Communities 785 785 0 

Economy and Culture 5,020 5,020 0 

Directorate Management and Support 524 476 48 

Community Services Total 9,492 9,444 48 

 
Parks and Countryside and Leisure 

3 Following the transfer of £40k under spend reported at the last committee meeting, to Car 
Parking budgets, Parks and Countryside are now forecasting to come in within budget. 

Communities 

4 Communities expect to come in within budget this year.  Community safety and Safer Roads 
Partnership funding is heavily reliant upon Area Based Grant funding.  During October the 
Area Based Grant allocation was confirmed and although reduced in amount, to that 
previously expected, it is not anticipated that this will result in any forecast overspend and 
agreements to lower funding options has been agreed with partner organisations.  

5 In the Comprehensive Spending Review in October it was announced that a number of 
specific and Area based grants will be moved into the formula grant over the review period, 
of which the Road Safety and Economic Assessment Duty grants, specifically relate to the 
Community Services portfolio. Although reductions are expected the impact for 
Herefordshire formula grant will not be known until December 2010.                                                        

Economy and Culture 

6 Services within Economy and Culture are all forecasting to spend within budget. Library 
services have successfully addressed last years over spend of £96k, due to remodelling and 
better contract negotiation.  

 
Directorate Management and Support 

7 Following the freeze on recruitment and the secondment of a staff member to the Housing 
Services, Directorate Support Services are expected to under spend by £48k.  
 
Recovery Plans 

8 The savings forecast within Directorate Management and Support, will be used to mitigate 
overspends within other services that form part of the Sustainable Communities Directorate. 

9 The Director of Resources has indicated that where possible Directorates should aim to 
under spend in order to contribute to the Council’s overall forecast over spend position. 
Further work is being carried out to ascertain any further savings that can be made within 

14



the Sustainable Communities Directorate and these will be reported to the next Community 
Services scrutiny meeting. 

Capital Budget 2010/11 

10 The Capital budgets for Community Services for 2010/11 are shown in appendix 2, on an 
individual scheme basis with funding arrangements indicated in overall terms.  The total of 
the Capital Programme has decreased to £13,845k from £13,977k, being the budget figure 
reported at 31st July 2010 and the relevant virements have been completed.  This is a net 
decrease of £132k and relates to: 

• A reduction in the budgets for Belmont Pools of £78k. This budget has been re profiled 
to be spent in 2011/12 rather than this year. 

• A reduction in the Free Swimming budgets of £54k. This has now transferred to Hereford 
Leisure pool, which is not within the Community Services Capital Programme. 

• Since the September forecasts Ross Library scheme has been under review and it is 
expected that the budget for 2010/11 will significantly reduce. This detail will be reflected 
in the next update to Scrutiny.   

• Ledbury Library continues to be under review and the latest forecasts available for 
October expect the budget for this year to be reduced to £100k until the review is 
complete. Confirmation of any budget changes will be shown in the next Scrutiny 
Committee reports. 

• Although the spend to date at 30th September 2010 is only £1,485k , the remainder of 
the  £13,845k budget ,allowing for likely reductions for Ross and Ledbury Library is all 
expected to be spent by 31st March 2010. 

Financial Implications 

11 These are contained in the body of the report. 

Legal Implications 

12 None. 

Risk Management 

13 The risks are set out in the body of the report. 

Appendices 

14 Appendix 1 – Summary Community Services Revenue Budget 2010/11 

15 Appendix 2 – Summary Community Services Capital Programme Budget 2010/11 

Background Papers 

• None Identified. 

15



16



Appendix 1

SUMMARY COMMUNITY SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET REPORT 2010/11

TO 30TH SEPTEMBER 2010

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Annual 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

Under 
/(over) 
spend

Actual to 
date

Budget to 
date

Under/(over) 
spend to 

date

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Parks, Countryside and Leisure 3,163 3,163 0 1,630 1,706 76
Communities 785 785 0 234 285 51
Economy and Culture 5,020 5,020 0 2,881 2,589 -292 
Directorate Mangement and support 524 476 48 241 268 27

9,492 9,444 48 4,986 4,848 -138 

Parks and countryside 1,461 1,461 0 528 610 82
HALO 1,624 1,624 0 1058 1058 0
Leisure Centre 78 78 0 44 38 -6 

Sub-Total Parks , Countryside and Leisure 3,163 3,163 0 1,630 1,706 76

Community Safety 116 116 0 62 58 -4 
Community Regeneration 669 669 0 172 227 55
Sub-Total Communities 785 785 0 234 285 51

Economy:
Economic Development 414 414 0 208 216 8
Delegated Grants and Programmes 79 79 0 23 42 19
Hereford  Futures 336 336 0 602 227 -375 
Head of Economic and Community Regeneration 154 154 0 77 75 -2 
Regeneration Programmes 314 314 0 111 172 61
Tourism 477 477 0 238 236 -2 
Cultural Services:
Arts 572 572 0 317 314 -3 
Cultural Services Staff 112 112 0 43 49 6
Heritage 519 519 0 293 274 -19 
Sports Development 197 197 0 72 93 21
Libraries 1,846 1,846 0 897 891 -6 

Sub-Total Economy and Culture 5,020 5,020 0 2,881 2,589 -292 

Sub-Total Directorate Mangement and support 524 476 48 241 268 27

17



18



Appendix 2
COMMUNITY SERVICES CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2010/11

Scheme
 Original 
Budget 
2010-11

Forecast as 
at 31st July 

2010

Revised 
Forecast as 
at 30th 

September 
2010

Change 
in 

forecast

Spend to 
30th 

September 
2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Livestock Market 4,800 5,800 5,800 0 652
Grange Court 0 1,500 1,500 0 36
Belmont pools 105 105 27 -78 27
Rural enterprize grant 1,667 1,667 1,667 0 766
Hereford City Shop Front Grants 2 2 2 0 0
Rotherwas Futures 500 718 718 0 -162
Hereford Cathedral Close 75 75 75 0 50
Shobdon S106 22 22 22 0 14
CCTV 14 14 0 10
CCTV for Union St/Passage 18 18 18 0 17
Safer Stronger Communities 44 22 22 0 0
Ross Library 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 38
Ledbury Library 2,339 2,339 2,339 0 22
Friar Street Phase 3 156 156 156 0 0
Self Service Booking System 39 39 39 0 15
Golf driving range 347 347 347 0 0
Free Swimming 54 54 0 -54 0
Aylestone Hill Park (Phase 2) 72 72 72 0 0
Vine Tree Farm R o W (POS) S106 27 27 27 0 0

11,267 13,977 13,845 -132 1,485

Capital Receipts Reserve 4,905 5305 5,227 -78
Growth Point Grant 0 600 600 0
Grants - Grange Court 0 1500 1,500 0
AWM 2,167 2372 2,372 0
Prudential Borrowing 3,976 3989 3,989 0
S106 121 135 135 0
Home Office 44 22 22 0
Dept of Cult & Leis - Free swimming grant 54 54 0 -54

11,267 13,977 13,845 -132

Funded By:

19



20



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Chris Jones, Performance Improvement Officer, Sustainable Communities Directorate, 
chris.jones@herefordshire.gov.uk or on (01432) 261596 

  

$buay0ixz.doc  

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6TH DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: PERFORMANCE OUT-TURN UP TO THE END OF 
SEPTEMBER 2010 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Purpose 

To provide a report on the outturns for key national performance indicator targets for services under 
the committees remit. This report has used the same format as used previously, and now 
incorporates the adopted performance rating system being used in the new corporate performance 
report for Cabinet; an explanation of the ratings is shown at Appendix A. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

 (a) the report be noted; 

 and; 

(b) areas of concern continue to be monitored. 
 

Key Points Summary 
• Whilst the majority of indicators are on target, there are a number that are currently below 

target, however where possible the services have actions in place to improve performance 
against these. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

1. To update the Communities Scrutiny Committee Members on the performance of services 
within the committee’s remit. 

2. To ensure Scrutiny Committee are kept appraised of the plans to improve performance within 
the service. 

Introduction and Background 

3. Performance is monitored against the National Indicators (NI) that were introduced from April 
2008 Regular reports are sent to the Government of the West Midlands and many of the 
government departments.  

4. This report covers the Performance Indicator Outturns as at 30th September 2010, against 
target figures for 2010-11, along with information about Direction of Travel and Status, which 

AGENDA ITEM 7

21



are defined as: 

• Direction of Travel – indicates whether the current position demonstrates improvement 
against the previous year’s out-turn 

• Status – indicates whether the current position demonstrates progress in line with the agreed 
target – G = Green (exceeded target by over 10%, B = Blue (on target or above target by up 
to 10%), A = Amber (within 5% of the target) and R = Red (5% or more below target). 

5. Progress needs to be assessed regularly, against the National Indicator; together with the 
risks and the actions that are being taken to address these and improve performance. 

Key Considerations 

6. NI 152 – Working Age People on out of work benefits - Despite this being an annually 
reported indicator there are actions in place to improve against this target.  The target is 
currently rated as amber which indicates that the outturn is within 5% of the target.  However, 
the Future Jobs Fund to assist long term unemployed aged 18 – 24 into work will have 
approximately 40% of beneficiaries moving into full time work, accredited training or both.    

7.  NI 9 – Use of Public Libraries – This indicator is currently rated as red which indicates that 
the target is 5% or more below target.  There are actions that are in place and the 
development of the Future Libraries Programme and the new Library Strategy is being 
developed to improve the service.  We will also be developing a new framework of local 
performance indicators that will measure performance of the service and customer 
satisfaction. 

8. NI 11 – Engagement in the arts – This indicator is currently amber and is therefore within 5% 
of the target.  Actions are now in place and it is envisaged that improvements will be seen 
against this target over the coming months. 

9. NI 171 – VAT registration rate per 10,000 resident population aged 16+ - This indicator 
has exceeded the target by over 10%.  This was due to all of the activities taking place as 
envisaged within the service plan.  This has included the creation of business start up grants 
and business growth grants.  The New Business Booster, Start-up Grant and Training 
Voucher schemes allocated £50,000.  In addition £150,000 has been allocated for 
Herefordshire Redundant Building Grant scheme which will enable small business to bring 
buildings back into use. 

10. 10 new grants were approved in September through the Rural Development Programme for 
England, with 152 projects being supported so far. 

11. NI 40 – Drug users in effective treatment – This indicator is currently amber, being within 
5% of target; some of the most important actions have been achieved and progress continues 
to be made against the drug treatment review actions.   

12. NI 30 – Re-offending rate of prolific and other priority offenders – This indicator is 
currently blue, on target or above target by up to 10%.  As at 31 March 2010 there were 76 
proven re-offences (target was no more than 79 offences).  The team continues to work with 
all of the agencies on initiatives to ensure that the rate of re-offending reduced further. 

13. Further information in respect of the performance outturns can be found in Appendix B. 

Community Impact 

14. Not Applicable. 

22



Financial Implications 

15. None Identified 

Legal Implications 

16. None Identified 

Risk Management 

17. None Identified 

Appendices 

18. Appendix A :  Key to Performance Reports   

19. Appendix B : Details of Key Performance outturns for Economy and Culture, and Homes 
and Communities up to 30th September 2010. 

Background Papers 

20.   None identified. 

23



24



25



26



A
pp

en
di
x 
B

E
co

n
o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 
&

 E
n
te

rp
ri

se

In
d
ic

at
o
r

L
ea

d
 D

ir
ec

to
r

T
o
le

ra
n
ce

T
ar

g
et

20
09

-1
0

20
10

-1
1

Ju
n
e

S
ep

t
Ju

n
e

S
ep

t

N
I 1
51
 -
 O
ve
ra
ll 
em

pl
oy
m
en
t r
at
e

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

76
.2
%

70
%

76
.2
%
 

(2
00

9/
10
)

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

S
ee
 c
om

m
en
ta
ry
 fo
r 
N
I 1

52

N
I 1
53
 -
 W

or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 
on
 

ou
t o
f w

or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 
in
 th
e 
w
or
st
 

pe
rf
or
m
in
g 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

S
m
al
le
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

33
.0
0%

41
.8
0%

33
%
 

(2
00

9/
10
)

1
1

n/
a

n/
a

T
he
 b
as
el
in
e 
fo
r 
th
is
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
ca
lc
ul
at
ed
 a
nd
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
s 
G
ol
de
n 
P
os
t-

N
ew

to
n 
F
ar
m
 a
s 
th
e 
on
ly
 L
S
O
A
 to
 e
xc
ee
d 
25
%
 c
la
im
an
t r
at
e 
(3
1%

 fo
r 
M
ay
 

06
 to
 F
eb
 0
7)
. T

he
 la
te
st
 d
at
a 
fo
r 
th
e 
fo
ur
 q
ua
rt
er
s 
in
 2
00
9 
sh
ow

s 
G
ol
de
n 

P
os
t-
N
ew

to
n 
F
ar
m
 to
 h
av
e 
in
cr
ea
se
d 
to
 3
3%

 u
p 
to
 F
eb
 2
01
0.

S
ee
 c
om

m
en
ta
ry
 fo
r 
N
I 1

52
.

N
I 1
66
 -
 A
ve
ra
ge
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
 

ea
rn
in
gs
 in
 th
e 
ar
ea

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

£3
83

.3
0

£3
90
.0
0

£3
83
.3
0

(2
00

9/
10
)

2
2

n/
a

n/
a

S
um

m
ar
y 
of
 a
ct
iv
ity
:

H
er
ef
or
d 
F
ut
ur
es
 (
fo
rm

er
ly
 th
e 
E
dg
ar
 S
tr
ee
t G

rid
 S
ch
em

e)
- 
S
ch
em

es
 h
av
e 

be
en
 d
el
ay
ed
 d
ue
 to
 s
ec
ur
in
g 
fu
nd
in
g.
  S

ta
nh
op
e 
sc
he
m
e 
pr
oc
ee
di
ng
 w
ith
 

pl
an
ni
ng
 p
er
m
is
si
on
 d
ue
 fo

r 
su
bm

is
si
on
.

R
ot
he
rw
as
- 
W
or
k 
on
 R
ot
he
rw
as
 in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 r
ea
dy
 fo
r 

m
ar
ke
tin
g 
th
e 
si
te
. 

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
H
om

e 
W
or
ki
ng
 B
us
in
es
se
s 
an
d 
sm

al
l b
us
in
es
s 
gr
ow

th
: S

m
al
l 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 v
ou
ch
er
. b
us
in
es
s 
bo
os
te
r 
an
d 

ne
tw
or
ki
ng
 e
ve
nt
s.
 P
ro
je
ct
s 
no
w
 fi
ni
sh
ed
 b
ef
or
e 
tim

e 
be
ca
us
e 
of
 

re
du
ct
io
ns
 o
n 
A
B
G
 fu
nd
s.

M
od
el
 F
ar
m
- 
P
ro
je
ct
 s
til
l b
ei
ng
 c
on
si
de
re
d 
fo
r 
pl
an
ni
ng
 p
er
m
is
si
on
, t
ho
ug
h 

fu
nd
s 
no
t c
ur
re
nt
ly
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
to
 p
ro
ce
ed
 w
ith
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t.

N
I 1
71
 –
 V
A
T
 r
eg
is
tr
at
io
n 
ra
te
 p
er
 

10
,0
00
 r
es
id
en
t p
op
ul
at
io
n 
ag
ed
 

16
+ 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

49
.7

(2
00

8)
39
.9

 (
20
09

)
49

.7
(2
00
8)

4
4

n/
a

n/
a

10
 n
ew

 g
ra
nt
s 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 th

is
 m
on
th
 th
ro
ug
h 
R
D
P
E
.

15
2 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 a
cr
os
s 
lif
et
im
e 
of
 p
ro
je
ct
.

N
I 1
72
 -
 V
A
T
 r
eg
is
te
re
d 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 in
 th
e 
ar
ea
 s
ho
w
in
g 

gr
ow

th

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

15
.0
1%

14
.2
0%

15
.0
1%

 
(2
00
9)

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
H
om

e 
W
or
ki
ng
 B
us
in
es
se
s 
an
d 
sm

al
l b
us
in
es
s 
gr
ow

th
: S

m
al
l 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 v
ou
ch
er
. b
us
in
es
s 
bo
os
te
r 
an
d 

ne
tw
or
ki
ng
 e
ve
nt
s.
 P
ro
je
ct
s 
no
w
 fi
ni
sh
ed
 b
ef
or
e 
tim

e 
be
ca
us
e 
of
 

re
du
ct
io
ns
 o
n 
A
B
G
 fu
nd
s.

N
I 1
73
 -
 P
eo
pl
e 
fa
lli
ng
 o
ut
 o
f 

w
or
k 
an
d 
on
 to
 in
ca
pa
ci
ty
 

be
ne
fit
s

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

S
m
al
le
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

La
te
st
 d
at
a 

su
pp
lie
d 
is
 

fr
om

 S
ep
t 

20
08

0.
61

%
0.
62
%
 

(S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
08
)

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

S
ee
 c
om

m
en
ta
ry
 fo
r 
N
I 1

52

A
n
al

ys
is

L
at

es
t 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

C
it
iz

en

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

D
ir

ec
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

ve
l

Ju
d
g
em

en
t

27



A
pp

en
di
x 
B

N
I 1
52
 –
 w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 
on
 

ou
t o
f w

or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

S
m
al
le
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

9.
70

%

2.
9%

 b
et
te
r 

th
an
 th
e 

na
tio
na

l 
av
er
ag

e

9.
7%

 (
F
eb

 2
01
0)

2
2

�
n/
a

D
at
a 
fr
om

 a
nd
 u
p 
to
 M
ay
 2
01
0.
 In
di
ca
to
r 
re
m
ai
ns
 m
ar
gi
na
lly
 b
el
ow

 ta
rg
et
, 

ho
w
ev
er
 th
e 
ou
ttu
rn
 h
as
 a
ga
in
 im

pr
ov
ed
 fr
om

 th
e 
pr
ev
io
us
 q
ua
rt
er
 F
eb
 

20
10
).
 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
co
nt
in
ue
s 
to
 r
un
 s
ch
em

es
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 
w
or
kl
es
sn
es
s 
e.
g.
 

F
ut
ur
e 
Jo
bs
 F
un
d 
co
nt
ra
ct
 1
 (
du
e 
to
 fi
ni
sh
 o
n 
th
e 
19
/1
1/
20
10
) 
fr
om

 w
hi
ch
 it
 

is
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed
 th
at
 th
er
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y 
40
%
 o
f b
en
ef
ic
ia
rie
s 
m
ov
in
g 

in
to
 fu
ll 
tim

e 
w
or
k,
 a
cc
re
di
te
d 
tr
ai
ni
ng
, o
r 
bo
th
. C

on
tr
ac
t 2
 w
ill
 b
e 
liv
e 
til
l 

M
ar
ch
 3
1s
t  
20
11
, i
t i
s 
to
o 
ea
rly
 to
 p
re
di
ct
 jo
b/
tr
ai
ni
ng
 o
ut
co
m
es
 o
n 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

2 
bu
t, 
w
e 
do
 a
lre
ad
y 
ha
ve
 1
 p
er
so
n 
w
ho
 h
as
 le
ft 
F
JF
 fo
r 
fu
ll 
tim

e 
w
or
k.
 

S
om

e 
of
 th
e 
E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t T

ea
m
s 
w
or
k 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 B
us
in
es
s 

S
up
po
rt
 is
 o
n 
ho
ld
 a
t p
re
se
nt
 d
ue
 to
 th
e 
ho
ld
 o
n 
A
B
G
 fu
nd
in
g.
 

N
I 1
63
 –
 w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 

qu
al
ifi
ed
 to
 L
ev
el
 2
 o
r 
hi
gh
er
 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

72
%

(2
00

8)
74
.8
%

(2
00

9)
D
ue
 J
an
ua
ry
 

20
11

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

A
ll 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 a
ct
iv
ity
 is
 ta

ki
ng
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 o
n 
ta
rg
et
.

N
I 1
78
 –
 b
us
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
ru
nn
in
g 
on
 

tim
e 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

86
%

73
%

86
%

4
4

�
n/
a

T
hi
s 
da
ta
 is
 c
ol
le
ct
ed
 a
nn
ua
lly
 b
y 
va
rio
us
 s
ur
ve
ys
 th

at
 ta
ke
 a
 s
am

pl
e 
of
 b
us
 

pa
ss
en
ge
r 
us
er
s 
on
 c
er
ta
in
 d
ay
s 
of
 th
e 
w
ee
k 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 m
on
th
s 

ea
ch
 y
ea
r.
 W

e 
ha
ve
 e
xc
ee
de
d 
ou
r 
20
09
/1
0 
ta
rg
et
 o
f 7

1%
. I
ss
ue
s 
ar
is
in
g 
in
 

te
rm

s 
of
 p
un
ct
ua
lit
y 
pr
ob
le
m
s 
ar
e 
de
al
t w

ith
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 b
us
 

op
er
at
or
s 
pr
ov
id
in
g 
th
e 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
su
rf
ac
e.
 

A
ll 
ac
tiv
ity
 h
as
 e
ith
er
 b
ee
n 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 o
r 
is
 o
n 
ta
rg
et
 

28



A
pp

en
di
x 
B

S
tr

o
n
g
er

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

In
d
ic

at
o
r

L
ea

d
 D

ir
ec

to
r

T
o
le

ra
n
ce

T
ar

g
et

20
09

-1
0

20
09

-1
0

M
ar

ch
Ju

n
e

M
ar

ch
Ju

n
e

N
I 3
 –
 c
iv
ic
 p
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n

D
ep
ut
y 
C
hi
ef
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

16
%
 

(2
00
8/
09
)

17
.5
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t e
ve
ry
 

tw
o 
ye
ar
s.
 T
he
 n
ex
t s
ur
ve
y 
is
 d
ue
 to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
au
tu
m
n 
20
10
 a
nd
 

da
ta
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 2
01
1,
 th

e 
ta
rg
et
 fo
r 
w
hi
ch
 is
 1
7.
5%

. W
or
k 
is
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 in
 

lin
e 
w
ith
 th
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
.

N
I 6
 –
 p
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 r
eg
ul
ar
 

vo
lu
nt
ee
rin
g 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

29
%
 

(2
00
8/
09
)

32
.5
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t e
ve
ry
 

tw
o 
ye
ar
s.
 T
he
 n
ex
t s
ur
ve
y 
is
 d
ue
 to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
au
tu
m
n 
20
10
 a
nd
 

da
ta
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 2
01
1,
 th

e 
ta
rg
et
 fo
r 
w
hi
ch
 is
 3
2.
5%

. D
el
iv
er
y 
P
la
n 
sh
ow

s 
go
od
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
be
in
g 
m
ad
e 
in
 v
ol
un
te
er
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t, 
w
ith
 s
ev
er
al
 k
ey
 

in
iti
at
iv
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
fo
r 
th
e 
re
st
 o
f t
he
 fi
na
nc
ia
l y
ea
r.

N
I 9
 –
 u
se
 o
f l
ib
ra
rie
s 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

B
ie
nn

ia
l 

da
ta
, 

an
tic
ip
at
ed
 

to
 b
e 

av
ai
la
bl
e 

en
d 
20

10

51
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

In
te
rim

 r
es
ul
t-
 

42
.8
%
 (
N
ov
 2
00
9)

1
1

n/
a

n/
a

N
I 1
1 
– 
en
ga
ge
m
en
t i
n 
th
e 
ar
ts
 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

B
ie
nn

ia
l 

da
ta
, t
o 
be
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 

en
d 
20

10

49
.5
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

46
.3
%

(N
ov
 2
00
9)

2
2

n/
a

n/
a

N
I 4
 –
 in
flu
en
ci
ng
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 in
 th
e 

lo
ca
lit
y 

(L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

28
.8
%
 

(2
00
8/
09
)

32
.3
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t e
ve
ry
 

tw
o 
ye
ar
s.
 T
he
 n
ex
t s
ur
ve
y 
is
 d
ue
 to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
au
tu
m
n 
20
10
 a
nd
 

da
ta
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 2
01
1,
 th

e 
ta
rg
et
 fo
r 
w
hi
ch
 is
 3
2.
3%

.  
D
es
pi
te
 th
e 
di
ffi
cu
lti
es
 

in
 r
ai
si
ng
 fu
nd
s 
bo
th
 th
e 
P
ar
tic
ip
at
or
y 
B
ud
ge
tin
g 
an
d 
em

er
ge
nc
y 
in
iti
at
iv
e,
 

bo
th
 a
re
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 w
ith
 a
 g
oo
d 
le
ve
l o
f a
ct
iv
ity
 a
t p

ar
is
h 
co
un
ci
l l
ev
el
.

N
I 1
 -
 %

 o
f p
eo
pl
e 
w
ho
 b
el
ie
ve
 

pe
op
le
 fr
om

 d
iff
er
en
t 

ba
ck
gr
ou
nd
s 
ge
t o
n 
w
el
l t
og
et
he
r 

(L
A

A
)

D
ep
ut
y 
C
hi
ef
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

75
.9
%
 

(2
00
8/
09
)

79
.4
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t e
ve
ry
 

tw
o 
ye
ar
s.
 T
he
 n
ex
t s
ur
ve
y 
is
 d
ue
 to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
au
tu
m
n 
20
10
 a
nd
 

da
ta
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 2
01
1,
 th

e 
ta
rg
et
 fo
r 
w
hi
ch
 is
 7
9.
4%

.  
W
ith
dr
aw

al
 o
f 

ex
te
rn
al
 fu
nd
in
g 
m
ay
 h
av
e 
de
tr
im
en
ta
l e
ffe
ct
 o
n 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 in
 th
is
 a
re
a.

Lo
ca
l –
 %

 o
f p
eo
pl
e 
w
ho
 fi
nd
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
di
ffi
cu
lt:

Lo
ca
l s
ho
p

A
dv
ic
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n

P
ub
lic
 tr
an
sp
or
t f
ac
ili
ty

C
ul
tu
ra
l /
 r
ec
re
at
io
na
l f
ac
ili
ty

a)
 L
oc
al
 s
ho
p

12
%

11
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

S
ta

tu
to

ry

S
m
al
le
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t e
ve
ry
 

tw
o 
ye
ar
s.
 T
he
 n
ex
t s
ur
ve
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
au
tu
m
n 
20
10
 a
nd
 d
at
a 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
in
 2
01
1.

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

C
it
iz

en

A
n
al

ys
is

T
ar

g
et

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

co
n
su

lt
ed

 o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
er

ef
o
re

 t
h
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
at

in
g
 

m
ay

 c
h
an

g
e.

A
lth
ou
gh
 w
or
k 
is
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 th
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
, i
nt
er
im
 r
es
ul
ts
 

fr
om

 th
e 
A
ct
iv
e 
P
eo
pl
e 
3 
S
ur
ve
y 
ha
ve
 r
ec
en
tly
 b
ee
n 
re
le
as
ed
 a
nd
 s
ho
w
 

th
at
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 h
as
 fa
lle
n 
fr
om

 p
re
vi
ou
s 
le
ve
ls
 a
nd
 is
 n
ot
 o
n 
tr
ac
k 
to
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
th
e 
LA

A
 ta
rg
et
s.

O
ve
r 
th
e 
pe
rio
d 
vi
si
ts
 to
 li
br
ar
ie
s 
ha
ve
 in
cr
ea
se
d.
 H
ow

ev
er
, t
hi
s 
in
di
ca
to
r 
is
 

de
riv
ed
 fr
om

 a
 n
at
io
na
l t
el
ep
ho
ne
 s
ur
ve
y 
of
 a
du
lts
 o
nl
y 
an
d 
m
ea
su
re
s 
th
ei
r 

us
e 
of
 th
e 
lib
ra
ry
 s
er
vi
ce
, w

hi
ch
 in
cl
ud
es
 v
is
its
 to
 li
br
ar
ie
s 
as
 w
el
l a
s 
ot
he
r 

se
rv
ic
es
, s
uc
h 
as
 th
os
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
on
-li
ne
.In
 c
on
ju
nc
tio
n 
w
ith
 th
e 

dv
el
op
m
en
t o
f t
he
 F
ut
ur
e 
Li
br
ar
ie
s 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
an
d 
th
e 
ne
w
 L
ib
ra
ry
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
a 
ne
w
 fr
am

ew
or
k 
of
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 fo
r 
th
e 
lib
ra
ry
 s
er
vi
ce
 

w
ill
 b
e 
in
tr
od
uc
ed
 in
 2
01
1 
w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 m
ea
su
re
 b
ot
h 
se
rv
ic
e 
pe
rf
om

an
ce
 a
nd
 

cu
st
om

er
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n.

A
rt
s:
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 A
rt
 W

ee
k 
w
as
 a
n 
ov
er
al
l s
uc
ce
ss
, a
ll 
ot
he
r 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 o
n 

ta
rg
et
 o
r 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 -
 fu
rt
he
r 
an
al
ys
is
 to
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 in
 D
ec
/J
an
.

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

S
er

vi
ce

L
at

es
t 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Ju
d
g
em

en
t

D
ir

ec
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

ve
l

29



A
pp

en
di
x 
B

b)
 A
dv
ic
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n

18
%

16
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

c)
 P
ub
lic
 tr
an
sp
or
t f
ac
ili
ty

21
%

21
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

N
ex
t d
ue
 e
nd
 o
f 

20
10

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

av
ai
la
bl
e 
in
 2
01
1.

W
or
k 
is
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 th
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
.

30



A
pp

en
di
x 
B

S
af

er
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
In

d
ic

at
o
r

L
ea

d
 D

ir
ec

to
r

T
o
le

ra
n
ce

T
ar

g
et

20
09

-1
0

20
10

-1
1

M
ar

ch
Ju

n
e

M
ar

ch
Ju

n
e

N
I 2
1 
– 
de
al
in
g 
w
ith
 c
on
ce
rn
s 

ab
ou
t a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
 

(p
ro
xy
 –
 in
ci
de
nt
s 
of
: a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l 

be
ha
vi
ou
r 
– 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
sp
ee
di
ng
 -
 

cr
im
in
al
 d
am

ag
e,
 a
lc
oh
ol
-r
el
at
ed
 

di
so
rd
er
, a
lc
oh
ol
-r
el
at
ed
 v
io
le
nt
 

cr
im
e)
 (
L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

30
.4
%

(2
01
0-
11
)

25
.4
%
 (
20
08
/0
9)

3
3

n/
a

n/
a

A
lth
ou
gh
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 A
S
B
 in
ci
de
nt
s 
ar
e 
ab
ov
e 
th
e 
yt
d 
ta
rg
et
 s
et
 b
y 
S
af
er
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
gr
ou
p 
in
 2
00
8,
 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 n
um

be
r 
of
 A
S
B
 in
ci
de
nt
s 

yt
d 
ar
e 
do
w
n 
88
3 
in
ci
de
nt
s 
co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
pe
rio
d 
in
 2
00
9 
(t
o 
30
th
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r)
.

T
he
 S
af
er
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
re
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 w
or
k 
in
 th
is
 a
re
a 
an
d 

it 
is
 g
oo
d 
to
 s
ee
 th
at
 th
e 
20
/2
0 
V
is
io
n 
pr
oj
ec
t i
s 
no
w
 o
n 
tr
ac
k 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 

ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 ta
sk
s.

N
I 4
0 
– 
dr
ug
 u
se
rs
 in
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 

tr
ea
tm
en
t (

L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

C
om

m
is
si
on
in
g

B
ig
ge
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

54
1

53
0

(a
s 
at
 D
ec
em

be
r 

20
09
)

2
2

n/
a

P
ro
gr
es
s 
co
nt
in
ue
s 
to
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
to
w
ar
ds
 a
ch
ie
vi
ng
 th

e 
m
an
y 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 li
st
ed
 in
 th
e 
dr
ug
 tr
ea
tm
en
t r
ev
ie
w
, a
lth
ou
gh
 fu
nd
in
g 

un
ce
rt
ai
nt
ie
s 
w
er
e 
hi
gh
lig
ht
ed
 in
 O
ct
ob
er
 u
pd
at
e.
  T

he
 m
os
t i
m
po
rt
an
t k
ey
 

ac
tio
ns
 h
av
e 
be
en
 a
ch
ie
ve
d.
  F

ur
th
er
 s
up
pl
em

en
ta
ry
 d
oc
um

en
ts
/p
la
ns
 a
re
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 d
ru
g 
po
lic
y.

N
I 3
0 
– 
pr
io
rit
y 
&
 p
ro
lif
ic
 

of
fe
nd
er
s 
(P
P
O
s)
 (
L
A

A
)

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es

S
m
al
le
r 
is
 b
et
te
r

21
%
 (
79
)

53
 (
D
ec
em

be
r 

20
09
)

3
3

n/
a

20
10
/1
1 
ta
rg
et
 is
 u
nk
no
w
n,
 n
o 
in
-y
ea
r 
da
ta
 to
 r
ep
or
t. 
 G
O
W
M
 w
ou
ld
 

no
rm

al
ly
 p
ro
vi
de
 th
is
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
to
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
. N

o 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
av
ai
la
bl
e.
 

T
he
 P
P
O
 C
oo
rd
in
at
or
 c
on
tin
ue
s 
to
 m
on
ito
r 
P
P
O
's
 lo
ca
lly
 -
 th
e 
la
st
 u
pd
at
e 

re
ce
iv
ed
 w
as
 in
 J
ul
y 
20
10
.

W
or
ks
ho
p 
bo
ok
ed
 fo
r 
30
th
 N
ov
 2
01
0 
to
 s
ta
rt
 S
er
vi
ce
 M
ap
pi
ng
.

L
at

es
t 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Ju
d
g
em

en
t

D
ir

ec
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

ve
l

C
it
iz

en

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

A
n
al

ys
is

31



32



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

David Powell, Director of Resources on 10432 383519 

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6TH DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF THIRD SECTOR SUPPORT AND 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

REPORT BY:  DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consult on the proposals contained within the Review of Third Sector Support and Development 
Services and its overall objective to achieve consensus on the future provision of services, resources 
and delivery.  

Recommendation 

 THAT:  the Committee considers the Review of Third Sector Support and Development 
Services and in particular comments on the conclusions, which will be used to 
inform recommendations to the Joint Management Team and Cabinet. 

Key Points Summary 

• A joint review between HPS and the Third Sector is being undertaken to consider future 
provision of support services to front line voluntary and community organisations. 

• The review has examined the needs of front line organisations, taken account of the views of 
key stakeholders, as well as the changing national picture and the financial constraints placed 
on HPS. 

• A number of options for the future structure for the delivery and commissioning of support 
services have been developed and are currently under consideration. 

• A decision on future delivery arrangements needs to be agreed and transitional arrangements 
substantially in place by April 2011. 

 
Alternative Options 

1. This report does not seek to put forward one option for the delivery of future support services to 
front line voluntary and community organisations, but gain views on the options developed as 
part of the Review.  However, it was made clear during the Review that the status quo was not 
an option, nor was the complete withdrawal of HPS funding support.  

AGENDA ITEM 8

33



Reasons for Recommendations 

2. This report to Scrutiny provides an opportunity to understand the views of Members prior to 
formally proposing the structure of future arrangements to support front line organisations, to 
Cabinet in January 2011. 

Introduction and Background 

3. Third sector support services provision has become an integral part of the frontline public 
service offer operating within Herefordshire. Shifts at the national level are reflected in the 
current direction of service provision. Key factors include: 

 
• Total Place - already embraced in Herefordshire e.g. through the creation of HPS; 

•  a shift to a commissioning rather than a provider focus and towards more locally 
focussed provision; 

• adoption of Compact Principles; and 

• significant resource pressures on local public services.  
 
4. The current trends are likely to accelerate and encompass the 'Big Society' approach to service 

provision. The developing agenda is aimed at minimising the impact of the national fiscal 
tightening by focusing and prioritising outcomes for Herefordshire. 

 
5. A cross-sector working group (the Third Sector Support Services Review Group) was    

established under the chairmanship of the Council’s Director of Resources, to review support 
services provided to the voluntary and community sector in Herefordshire (also known as the 
Third Sector).   

6. There is a detailed definition of the support services covered by the Review in the Terms of 
Reference for the Working Group. It is summarised here as the range  of organisations which 
occupy the intermediary space between the State and the private sector, including voluntary 
and community organisations, charities, faith groups, not for profit groups and social 
enterprises. In Herefordshire, they range from small local volunteer led community groups to 
large, countywide organisations. 

7. The scope of the review covered the six third sector organisations funded by Herefordshire 
Public Services (HPS) to provide support services ( Herefordshire Voluntary Action, Community 
Voluntary Action Ledbury and District, Community First, Herefordshire Council for Voluntary 
Youth Services, The Alliance and Age Concern Hereford and Worcester) as well as those 
services delivered within HPS to support to the third sector.  The majority of funding to support 
these services is provided by Herefordshire Public Services. 

 
8. The overall objective of the Review is to achieve a consensus on the future provision of 

services, resources and delivery which will lead to:  
 

• Comprehensive, high quality support services that meet the identified and anticipated 
needs of front line third sector organisations. 

• Inclusive and flexible support services that are available, accessible and affordable to all 
front line third sector organisations across the county, and meet the varying support 
needs of different organisations. 

• Sustainable and effective delivery of support services that reflects good practice, 
eliminates duplication, fills gaps and provides value for money. 

34



 
9. The work of the Review Group has included 

 
• a survey of those third sector organisations which receive support services from either the 

third sector or HPS; 

• a mapping exercise of the scope of support services currently provided by the six third 
sector organisations and HPS; 

• the development of principal options for the future shape and resourcing of support and 
development services to the third sector (this work was commissioned from Grant 
Thornton, whose report is attached as Appendix A). 
 

10. The findings have been shared with Councillors, the Third Sector Interim Board and trustees of 
the six organisations affected.  In addition, the Third Sector Interim Board has also 
commissioned a scrutiny review, testing the proposals with Board members and front line 
organisations.  This approach was agreed in order to provide a wide scrutiny process that 
included both the Council and Third Sector.  The Third Sector Interim Board has interviewed 
members of the review group to help inform its process. 

 
 Key Considerations 

11. The Working Group has reached a consensus on the general direction of travel, to respond to 
the future needs of front line third sector organisations, with the need to develop new delivery 
mechanisms and new commissioning arrangements.  There are a number of options under 
consideration including the move towards a single provider / entity, (with future development of 
a hub and spoke model to service localities) and commissioning multiple providers via a single 
commissioning board.  April 2011 is the deadline for transitional arrangements to be agreed 
and substantially in place. 

12. The review has concluded that the current approach to Third Sector Support Services lacks co-
ordination.  Furthermore, in some instances services are duplicated meaning value for money 
cannot be demonstrated and a lack of clarity exists about which organisation delivers what 
services.  One of the agreed principles of the review is that it is a priority for Herefordshire 
Public Services to deploy funding in the most efficient way whilst providing the most effective 
service. A new commissioning arrangement for these services is therefore needed to ensure 
this priority is met, especially as the third sector will be need to ensure even greater co-
ordination of support will enable it to continue to meet the aspirations of the ‘Big Society’, within 
existing and future funding constraints.  

13. The options outlined in the report also reference a need for shared ‘back office’ functions for the 
services which will provide greater collaboration and value for money. This is particularly 
relevant given the opportunity afforded by the HPS Shared Services programme. If not 
implemented, the danger is that of continued duplication, siloed working and under-utilised 
resources. 

14. At an early stage the review group wanted its work to be informed by an evidence base.  This 
was achieved by two research exercises: 

•  A services needs survey of Front Line Organisations (FLOs).  The survey saw 321 
organisations respond; and 

• A service mapping survey carried out by the six Local Support and Development 
Organisations (LSDOs) commissioned by HPS to provide third sector support services.  
HPS support was also mapped. 

35



15. Following a competitive tendering process Grant Thornton was selected to provide additional 
review capacity and develop the principal options. 

16. The needs survey data was reviewed by Grant Thornton and their findings presented to the 
review group.  The data suggested that those who use the services are broadly happy but the 
relevance to the wider community of FLOs is unclear.  Even so the majority of perceived needs 
appear to be met.  However, the wider issue is whether this would remain the case in the future. 

17. Grant Thornton concluded “that the level of unmet need will grow, and if it does, dissatisfaction 
with provision can be expected to grow with it, if the way third sector support services are 
provided does not change”.  The implication of this conclusion is there would be an impact on 
all organisations either receiving or delivering third sector support services.  A wider impact was 
felt to be a limitation of the extent to which civil society organisations are able to respond to the 
emerging changes evident in government policy aimed at support the Big Society agenda. 

18. The working group accepted the increasing resource constraints and have been briefed on the 
emerging implications of CSR10 announced on 20th October.  These constraints mean that it is 
unlikely that increased resources will be available to meet increasing demands.  The changes 
required for the future means that third sector support services will: 

a. Have a priority driven strategic rationale; 

b. Demonstrate increased productivity; 

c. Remove duplication yet support devolution of service delivery; 

d. Demonstrate a market response approach that adopts as needs change and grow; and 

e. Demonstrate new, lower cost, models of support. 

19. The Grant Thornton work also concluded that the organisations through which third sector 
support services are deployed will need to change.  The likely scale of the change was seen as 
significant and there was an associated need to implement change quickly so that future 
demand can be met. 

20. It is important to note that the current model had undoubted strengths and the stakeholder 
consultation in September and October produced the following comments: 

• “…there is a desire to support diverse and disparate front line organisations…” 

• “…there is detailed specialist support available…” 

• “…there is a high propensity for volunteering in Herefordshire… 

• “…there is good partnership working between HPS and other TSSS providers…” 

• “…the model has developed organically, so it has strong community buy-in…” 

• “.. there are good examples of shared delivery, such as community buildings…” 

• “…different sources of funding can be accessed - we have "more bites at the cherry"…” 
 
20. However, the stakeholders also gave examples that indicated why change is necessary: 
 

• “…I don't know what support services are on offer…” 

• “…the same service is provided by different providers…” 

• “…the current providers need to be more joined up…” 

• “…I receive multiple newsletters and don't have the time to read any of them…” 

• “…Herefordshire is small; so the current set up seems overly complicated…” 

• “.. there seem to be gaps in service provision…” 

36



• “…there is a cost to managing the boundaries and interfaces between the different 
providers…” 

 
21. Stakeholder consultation produced a series of key themes: 

 

• The current model can and should be improved; 

• There are efficiencies to be made via improved working (shared back office, 
accommodation, removal of duplication, etc.); 

• LSDOs agree there needs to be a “One Sort of Something”; 

• The future model needs to be “rural proofed” and ensure diverse communities are 
supported; 

• FLOs find the duplication of activities and communications confusing; 

• A priority for FLOs is bidding for funds, often unsuccessfully.  A concerted effort to reduce 
this burden may be preferable to findings ways to sustain it; 

• The future model needs to align to the new locailities principles; 

• Priority for FLOs is sustainability/securing funding; 

• Herefordshire has good track record of volunteering, but there are concerns over its 
sustainability; and 

• This review is an opportunity, but we need to get it right. 

 
22. Following consideration of feedback and work undertaken as part of the preliminary phases of 

the project a list of options was developed.  As a result on 7th October the Third Sector Support 
Service Review working group agreed the following list of options for evaluation: 

 
Options High level description 
1.  Commission a single provider Full commissioning of all TSSS activity currently provided 

by the existing 6 providers and HPS via a single entity (this 
could be, for example, via a joint venture, potentially 
including the merger of part or all of existing 
commissioned providers) 
 

2.  Commission multiple providers 
via a single TSS Board 

Re-tender all TSSS contracts and stimulate competition 
for providing TSSS and invite new market entrants 
including private sector organisations to deliver TSSS. 
This can include local, regional and national providers 
 

3a.  Mixed in-sourced and 
outsourced TSSS provision 

HPS integrate core/generic TSS provision into HPS 
shared service centre (back office and front line 
generalist support), and commission specialists support 
via a range of providers. 
 

3b.  Mixed in-sourced and 
outsourced TSSS provision 

HPS integrate core/generic TSS provision into HPS 
shared service centre (back office only), and commission 
specialists support via a range of providers. 
 

4.  Hub and spoke /Localities 
model 

Deliver a core/generic cross sector TSSS at a County 
level via a single hub (merging levels of provision by 
current providers) with access to specialist support - 
providing access to the hub via small spokes based in 
service provision localities. 

37



 
5.  Single provider with hub and 

spokes structure 
A hybrid of options 1 and 4, with a single entity with a 
central hub (including shared back office and potentially 
some specialist services) with local spokes providing 
other, potentially more generalist services. Balance of 
central and local delivery to be determined, and a phased 
approach possible, reflecting wider role out of localism 
principles and practical constraints 

  
 
23. The TSSSR Working Group considered the options and following the first review it was agreed 

that:  
 

• Options 3a and 3b should be discounted. Whilst it was noted these options would offer 
some economies of scale, by delivering cost savings through shared services, it was 
unclear that the approach would be welcomed by all FLOs.  The working group also felt 
that little extra value would be delivered. 

 

• The Commissioning Board in Option 2 was identified as the distinguishing feature from 
the status quo. However, it was noted that the Commissioning Board could be applied to 
the other options. 

 

• The TSSSR working group at a subsequent meeting identified a new option, combining a 
single entity with some local presence (see Option 5 above). The group felt this was 
potentially preferable to Options 1 and 4, as it combined the benefits of both options.  

 

24. The Working Group focussed predominantly on two options (2 and 5) but did not reach a clear 
consensus. 
 

25. Option 5 was preferable to most, but not all members of the Working Group but there are still 
issues to be addressed. These include the viability of the predecessor organisations (if 
Herefordshire TSSS provider elements are removed) and the need to structure it in a way that 
maximises the potential to lever funding and additional resources. It should also be noted that 
there are various organisational models that may reflect different types of integration with 
varying degrees of impact upon exiting bodies. 
 

26. The group reached a consensus on a localities focus as being the preferred direction of travel; 
this is consistent with likely developments in the county (and nationally). However there were 
some concerns about the feasibility of implementing local 'spokes' in terms of implementation 
complexity and potential cost. 
 

27. The review is also timely given the end of Capacity Builders funding in March 2011.  This is at a 
time when the Government is consulting on future national support services.  The “Supporting 
Stronger Civil Society” consultation document was issued in October 2010 and includes the 
Herefordshire Third Sector Support Services Review including rationalisation of infrastructure 
provision. 
 

28. CSR10 confirmed £470m over the four year review period will be made available to support 
third sector capacity building and a £100m Transition Fund will be created to support third 
sector organisations providing public services.  The review process may be well placed to 
access funding should collaboration or even merger of organisations occur. 

Spoke 
Community Impact 

29. The review has been a collaborative piece of work involving the relevant third sector 
organisations in the entire process, as it is important that consensus is reached. The resulting 

38



decision from this review will have an indirect impact on communities as community groups 
benefit from the support services commissioned and delivered and it is therefore important that 
this service to them is of the highest quality whilst being cost-effective. 

Financial Implications 

30. Financial support from HPS for those organisations providing support services to the third 
sector will not be immune from the effects of CSR10.  Whilst this is not the prime driver for the 
Review, the emphasis has been on effective support to front line third sector organisations, and 
reducing management and overhead costs at a time of budgetary constraint would be an 
advantage.  

31. The funding envelope has not been agreed but it is likely that the Council’s funding will need to 
reduce over future years. 

Legal Implications 

32. At the end of the 2010/11 financial year all current contracts with third sector organisations 
providing support services end. There are therefore no legal implications in relation to 
contractual arrangements other than the need to reach a decision swiftly for clarity to be given 
on financial arrangements post March 2011. 

Risk Management 

33. If agreement is not reached, HPS will not be able to secure a way of ensuring co-ordination and 
increased value for money in commissioning. This has been mitigated by the joint nature of the 
review. 

34. More immediately, if clear financial proposals are not reached by end of December 2010, the 
viability of the six third sector organisations may be at risk from April 2011. 

Consultees 

35. Consultation with key stakeholders, including commissioners, providers, third sector front line 
organisations was undertaken as part of the work conducted by Grant Thornton.  The HPS 
Research Team also supported a postal survey of third sector frontline organisations.  The 320 
survey responses informed the Grant Thornton report.    

36. Significant consultees have included: 

• The Leader of Herefordshire Council 

• The Chief Executive of Herefordshire Public Services 

• Members of Joint Management Team 

• The Interim Chair of the Third Sector Board 

• Trustees and chairs of the involved third sector organisations 

Appendices 

• Appendix 1 - Review of Third Sector Support and Development Services – Grant 
Thornton (November 2010) 

• Appendix 2 - Terms of Reference of the Third Sector Support Services Review Group 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



 

Appendix 2 

Herefordshire Third Sector Support Services Review 
Terms of Reference 

 
Aim 
To review current support services for front line third sector organisations, (FLOs) and make 
recommendations for future services and their resourcing for Herefordshire Public Services 
(HPS) to commission or provide, alongside a coherent and cost-effective form of delivery, in 
order to sustain a thriving, diverse, independent and respected third sector in Herefordshire.   
 
Rationale 
During 2009 three reports1 were produced on aspects of the third sector in Herefordshire.  The 
findings of these reports, together with the discussions on their implementation at a time of 
financial constraint has led to the current Review, which will examine current  support services 
for front line third sector organisations in Herefordshire and to identify future priorities.  
 

It is intended that the review will cover all  support services provided to front line third sector 
organisations  across the Herefordshire Partnership, although it is recognised that Herefordshire 
Public Services, (HPS), is a major funder of  some  of these services within the county.  
 

HPS has confirmed that it will use the results of the Review as a basis for future commissioning 
as well as provision of these services from within its own teams. The Review will also assist 
third sector infrastructure organisations in their future development and structure.  It is also 
expected to inform the support services  that other members of Herefordshire Partnership 
commission. 
 
Desired Outcomes  
A consensus over future services, resources and delivery  
 

§ Comprehensive, high quality support services that meet the identified and anticipated 
needs of front line third sector organisations 

 

§ Inclusive   and  flexible  support  services that are available, accessible and affordable to 
all front line third sector organisations across the county, and meet the varying  support 
needs of different organisations. 

 

§ Sustainable and effective delivery of support services that reflects good practice, 
eliminates duplication, fills gaps and provides value for money. 

 
Scope 
The review will cover all support services provided to FLOs by HPS and by the following six 
third sector organisations: Age Concern, Herefordshire and Worcestershire; The Alliance; 
Community First; Community and Voluntary Action, Ledbury; Herefordshire Council of Voluntary 
Youth Services and Herefordshire Voluntary Action. 
 

The review will also be informed by other organisations which provide resources to support 
such services, including members of the Herefordshire Partnership. It is also recognised that 
there may be a number of other organisations, both public and third sector, including those 
which are primarily delivery organisations, which also deliver support services to FLOs. The 
review will not, however, encompass these investments or services in detail,  although they 
could be the subject of second phase work at a later date, should that be considered desirable. 
 

While the Review will, therefore, aim to include all organisations  which  provide  resources for, 
and support  services to FLOs in Herefordshire to inform a future framework for commissioning 

                                    
1 ‘Review of The Herefordshire Alliance’ Richard Gutch May 2009 
  ‘Review of Third Sector Engagement with the Herefordshire Partnership’ Hasnah 
   Sheriff June 2009 
  ‘Review of Herefordshire’s Funding and Procurement Code’ Ros Cassy May 2009 

107



 

these services, it will remain tightly focussed in order to deliver the desired outcomes in a timely 
fashion. 
 

The working group will compile and monitor a Risk register.  
 

Accountability and Decision making 
The Review will be conducted by a Working Group which will make recommendations. The 
recommendations of the Review will be subject to the approval by the relevant decision-making 
mechanisms of each participating organisation. This will be the Chief Executive of Herefordshire 
Council and Herefordshire Primary Care Trust, for HPS, and the Boards of Trustees of third 
sector support organisations. 
 
Timescale 
The review will be conducted to inform commissioning for the financial year 2011/12. 
 

Operating Procedures and Administration - These are attached at Appendix B.  
 

Review Group Membership 
Core membership: 
Chair - David Powell – Director of Resources – Herefordshire Council 
 

Nina Bridges, Community Regeneration Manager – Herefordshire Council 
Alex Fitzpatrick, Third Sector Liaison Officer- Herefordshire Council 
Richard Betterton, Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services 
Tess Brooks-Sheppard, Community Voluntary Action, Ledbury and District 
Helen Horton, The Alliance  
Will Lindesay, Herefordshire Voluntary Action 
Richard Quallington, Community First 
Philip Talbot, Age Concern Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
Wendy Fabbro, Associate Director, Integrated Commissioning Directorate, HPS  
Philippa Granthier, Head of Children’s Trust Development, Children and Young People’s 
Directorate, HPS 
 

To attend as appropriate: 
Richard Gabb, Assistant director, Homes and Communities, HPS 
Robert Blower, Communications, HPS 
Julie Gethin, Head of Partnership Support, Herefordshire Partnership  
 

Secretariat: Carrie Wright, PA to David Powell. 
A list of principal interested parties to be consulted/ included at key stages is attached at 
Appendix C.  
 
Key areas of activity 

1. Agree definitions and categories of support services; see Appendix A 
2. Map all support services provided to FLOs, using the agreed definitions and categories. 
3. Conduct a sample survey of third sector organisations which receive support services.  
4. Each provider of support  services  to provide further details of services, including 

current and future costs and funding sources. 
5. Each funder of support services  to provide further details of funding arrangements, 

including current and future funding, in kind resources and priority areas for funding.  
6. Identify differences, complementary services, duplication, gaps and 

added  value.  
7. Understand the priorities and drivers for those organisations that fund support services. 
8. Examine examples of current good practice in effective delivery. 
9. Identify opportunities and mechanisms for more effective and efficient delivery. 
10. Based on the review findings, put forward recommendations on the support services 

required and the necessary infrastructure to deliver them, in order to inform the 
commissioning strategy for HPS and other Herefordshire Partnership members.   

 
 

108



 

Strategic Framework  
The review will take account of Total Place and the locality work being led by Geoff Hughes, 
(Director of Regeneration, HPS). 
 
The key strategic documents that provide the framework for, and will inform the review, are 
listed in Appendix D.  
 
 
Review 
These Terms of Reference will be open to review at any time, but any proposed changes will 
require the agreement of the majority of the membership and must be clearly recorded. 

109



 

 

110



 

Appendix A 
Definitions and Categories 
 
Third sector 
The  range  of organisations which occupy the intermediary space between the State and the 
private sector, where private energy can be deployed for the public good. It is an umbrella term 
that embraces a number in common use which define parts of the sector, including voluntary 
and community, charity, not for profit and social enterprise, which together form the backbone of 
civil society.  
 
The sector consists of a diversity of organisations which vary in size, income, activity and the 
way in which they are constituted.  This includes community, voluntary and faith groups, 
registered charities, foundations and trusts,   housing associations   and  the  growing  number  
of  social enterprises and cooperatives. They range from small local volunteer led community 
groups to large,   national   organisations with turnover in excess £100m.  
                 
Third sector support and development organisations 
Services provided by any organisation that plays a role in supporting, co-ordinating, 
representing, policymaking and/or development in relation to local   voluntary  and  community 
organisations.  
 
Third sector support and development organisations provide the infrastructure in the sector that 
ensures that front line third sector organisations, (FLOs), have the skills, knowledge, structures 
and resources to realise their full potential.  
 
The provision of support and  development  services  through  infrastructure  organisations is 
second tier activity that supports front-line delivery, supporting organisations, not individuals.  

 
The role of third sector support and development organisations is to provide leadership for the 
sector and support for third sector organisations in their area, responding to  needs identified 
and expressed by local FLOs,  and also bringing to their attention new issues and policies that 
will have an impact on the sector,  offering guidance and support in how to address them.  
 
Support and development services are provided within the sector nationally, regionally and 
locally. 
  
There are support and development organisations which offer: 

• generalist support within a geographical area, such 
as  Councils  for Voluntary Service (CVS);  and those which  
offer 

• specialist sub-sectoral support to specific communities or client 
             groups, such as  Rural Community Councils (RCC) or Volunteer 
              Bureaux (VB),  or in health and social care or child care. 

 
Such support can also come from organisations outside the third sector, such as local 
authorities and other public sector organisations, Business Link, funders, private sector training.  
 
 
Third Sector Support and Development Services  
Services designed to build the capacity and capability of individual front-line organisations and 
groups and of the sector as a whole, and also to release and realise their potential for 
contributing to the public good.  
 
For the purpose of this Review, key services provided by third sector infrastructure 
organisations cover the following activities: 

 
1. Development support:  

111



 

Pro-actively identifying needs in the local community and facilitating and supporting 
responses to meet those needs and /or plug gaps in provision. This includes: 

• Community development, community involvement and 
       action; 
•   Start-up; ‘promote and float’: incubating new 
       organisations, relinquishing others that can stand alone; 
•   Initiation, growth and contraction of groups, projects and 
       services.  

 
2. Legal and technical information, advice and guidance:  

Ensure that organisations are fit for purpose, legally compliant and operating to high 
standards, using a variety of means to promote services and encourage take-up. 
  

• Governance: Legal status, governing documents, constitutional, and access 
to legal advice; Board development and support for Trustees 

• Organisational development including strategic and business planning; HR 
and workforce development;  equalities, health and safety, safeguarding and 
other organisational policies and procedures; 

• Financial advice, including financial management; costing and pricing; fund 
raising, income generation; 

• Skills for winning and delivering contracts: ‘contract readiness’ for tendering 
and procurement;  negotiation; project and service management; data 
collection; monitoring and reporting 

• Marketing, communications, customer care; consultation/feedback; service 
user engagement. 

• Performance improvement and management, including: quality assurance 
and standards; accreditation service and regulation – advice and/or an 
accreditation service; evaluation. 

 
These services can be provided at different levels, from information  giving and signposting, 
through support, including training, to specialist advice to organisations on a one-to-one 
basis, including good practice, and to national standards where they apply.  

 
3. Practical assistance and resources: 

Buildings,   premises and facilities:  (e.g. Community Resource Centres; Volunteer 
Bureaux; Community Transport, where used by organisations and groups, not 
individuals.) 
 

• Premises management  
• Office services, including ICT  
• Grant -giving mechanism; access to funding opportunities  
• Volunteering:  Promotion; Brokerage service with a single point of access; 

accessible Volunteer Centres; employee Volunteering; developing 
volunteering opportunities  

 
4. Learning and Development 

Encourage and co-ordinate the take-up of training and learning opportunities across the 
sector  

• Regular training needs analysis and identification of priorities 
• A structured programme for the delivery of learning and  development 

opportunities through a variety of media, including access to accredited 
training   

• Encouragement of innovation and creativity  
• Facilitation of support mechanisms, e.g. mentoring, (especially for lone 

workers), learning sets and skills sharing  
 

112



 

5. Strengthening voice: 
Provide a representative and accountable voice for third sector organisations to policy 
makers, service  planners and funders.  

• Raise  the  profile of the sector through promoting its capability and value;  
• Provide a communications and co-ordination hub 
• Channel information between national, regional and local bodies, including 

promoting national/regional campaigns to front-line organisations  
• Encourage the voices of the sector to be heard through advocacy, liaison   

and representations. 
• Promote networking, (including FLO forums), knowledge sharing,   

collaboration  and partnerships internally within the sector to maximise 
resources  

• Scrutinise and challenge policies and practices. 
• Pursue Compact compliance  
• Promote Gift Aid and Payroll giving 
• Assist the Third Sector Strategic Board/Forum to achieve its goals 
 

6. Strategic partnership building and brokerage:  
Bringing together FLOs with external public and private sector organisations for   
joint/cooperative policy making, planning and service delivery.  

• Provide and support formal representation 
• Engage with policy makers, service planners and funders with and on behalf 

of FLOs 
• Be the ‘public face’ of the third sector  
• Represent the interests of the sector in partnerships and networks  
• Encourage community engagement   
• Manage third sector consultation networks 
• Conduct consultations   
• Act as a ‘bridge’ between FLOs and commissioners of services, facilitating 

working relationships and contributing to commissioning and service 
development for the benefit of service users.  

• Facilitate participation in shaping and delivering CAA/LAA and delivery of NIs 
by FLOs 

 
7. Research and Policy Development:  

Collect and provide evidence on the needs, role and developments within the third 
sector, in order to influence policy, planning and service delivery.  

• Data bank 
• Disseminate information on national, regional and local policy initiatives  
• Develop policy responses and proposals 
• Commission research 
• Produce and circulate policy papers, guidance and information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

113



 

Appendix B 
Operating Procedures and Administration 
 
Review Group 
The Review Group is a task and finish group. The Review Group will be chaired by David 
Powell, Director of Resources, Herefordshire Council. 
 

The Chair is appointed for the Group, from inception to completion of the task. 
 
Decision making 
It is expected that the Group will achieve consensus through full and open discussion.  Any 
differences of opinion potentially leading to conflict, should be resolved at an early stage, via the 
Chair if required.   
 

If there are objections to decisions, these must be noted in the minutes of the meetings.  
 
Meetings 
The Group will meet at least monthly. A programme of actions will be agreed at the first meeting 
and reviewed at each subsequent meeting.  
 

A schedule of meetings will be agreed at the first meeting. 
 

If required the Chair will be able to call additional meetings. 
 
Administration 
The Secretariat for the Group will be provided by Carrie Wright, Personal Assistant to the Chair. 
 

Agendas and papers will be circulated a week prior to the meeting.  Every effort will be made to 
avoid tabling of papers. 
 

Minutes will be kept to record decisions made by the Review Group.   
 
Attendance 
Review Group members unable to attend a particular meeting may arrange for a substitute from 
the group / organisation they represent, to attend in their place. 
 
If a representative leaves their represented organisation or group, the organisation or group 
shall appoint a new representative. 
 
Quorum 
The Review Group will be quorate when five members are present including the Chair, with two 
representatives each from the public and third sectors required at each meeting.  
 
Declarations of Interest 
Declarations of interest should be declared and will be recorded. 
 

 
Appendix C 

Principal Interested Parties 
 
HP public sector organisations: Police/Probation/Fire Service 
 

Diocese of Hereford 
 

Parish Councils 
 

Chamber of Commerce 
 

Business Link 
 
 
 
 

114



 

Appendix D 
 
Relevant Strategic Documents  
 
The following documents will provide the framework for and inform the Review:  
 

• Local Compact and Codes of Good Practice 
 

• Joint Strategic Needs Analysis 
 

• Community Strategy 
 

• World Class Commissioning Strategy 
 

• Children’s Trust Commissioning Framework 
 

• Director of Public Health’s Report 
 

• Review of The Herefordshire Alliance 
 

• Review of Third Sector Engagement with Herefordshire Partnership 
 

• Review of the Herefordshire Compact Funding and Procurement Code 
 
 
Adopted 8th July 2010 

115



116



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Natalia Silver, Assistant Director, Economy and Culture on (01432) 26073 

 MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6TH DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO COMMUNITY 
SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF SUPPORT 
FOR VOLUNTEERING 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, ECONOMY AND CULTURE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Purpose 

To consider the Executive’s response to the Review of Volunteering conducted by the Community 
Services Scrutiny Committee. 

Recommendations 

 THAT: 

 (a) the report is agreed; and 

(b) the action plan is monitored by the scrutiny community for the next 12 
months. 

Key Points Summary 

The key findings of the Scrutiny Review of Volunteering were forwarded to the Cabinet Member for 
Economic Development and Community Services.  The Cabinet Member agreed all the 
recommendations and the attached action plan highlights how the actions will be achieved. 

The key activities outlined in the action plan aim to result in more people volunteering (an increase of 
3.5% by the end of the current financial year on current performance indicator of 29% on 2008).  The 
activity concentrates on a collaborate approach facilitated through the Voluntary Development Group 
(VDG), specifically supported by the Voluntary Sector Liaison Officer employed by Herefordshire 
Council.  Key activity includes: 

• Increased marketing and awareness; 

• Increased collaboration with other organisations / groups including NHS Herefordshire and 
parish / town councils; 

• Raise awareness of the local authority commitment to enable staff to volunteer in office time 
for up to 2 days per year; 

• Gain further understanding of the Community Transport programmes. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

117



Alternative Options 

1 The scrutiny review and supporting documents found that volunteering is a cost effective way 
of supporting communities; addressing challenges people face individually; and more widely 
has a wholly positive effect on society.  However, considering the financial climate the 
alternative option is that support for volunteering provided by HPS is scaled back or withdrawn 
with the recommendations presented by Scrutiny Committee ignored. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Before being agreed by the Cabinet Member the recommendations presented by the 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee were considered by the Volunteering Development 
Group (VDG) and felt to be relevant and achievable through a collaborative approach. 

Introduction and Background 

3 On the 7th December 2009 the Community Services Scrutiny Committee decided to establish 
a review group to consider support for volunteering.  After a series of interviews and 
discussions the review group presented its findings to the wider committee on 28th June 2010.  
The report as presented was accepted. 

4 The report was considered by the VDG as many of the recommendations affect the work and 
interests of the membership; also the group felt the issues raised are best addressed through 
a partnership approach. 

Key Considerations 

5 As outlined in the action plan all the recommendations presented by Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee have been agreed by the Cabinet Member, as well as being presented to 
the Joint Management Team. 

6 The scale and level of the activity in some cases will depend on finding additional funding or 
reprioritising of activity. 

7 As well as some short term activity, longer term initiatives include working with parish councils 
that do not usually engage in volunteering campaigns; and that the Third Sector Review of 
Infrastructure considers the role of organisations that support volunteering. 

8 More work is needed to understand the management and delivery of community transport as 
a number of organisations are involved and it was unclear to the review group if there was 
duplication.  Also, the Volunteer Centres are working increasingly with people with learning 
disabilities, which require a different type of resource requirement.  This again needs to be 
clarified in terms of impact and demand and should be considered through discussions with 
people who work with people with disabilities. 

Community Impact 

9 The review group found that the work, the local authority and other organisations in supporting 
volunteering, has a very positive effect on communities.  This is outlined in more detail in the 
review document but includes creating a sense of well being and achievement, connection to 
communities and supports people gaining experience for work. 

10 It found that people and communities rely on volunteering, but also those who volunteer see 
the personal benefits of “giving their time”. 

118



11 The review group also found that the nature of volunteering is changing with people motivated 
to be involved for a range of reasons - this might include addressing a pressing community 
issue (e.g. closure of a local shop).  Also the pattern of volunteering has changed with more 
people giving their time, but fewer hours. 

Financial Implications 

12 The cost to meet the recommendations can be met from current budgets, aided by pooling 
resources across organisations.  However, external funding will be sought to escalate some of 
the activity, particularly marketing and awareness campaigns. 

13 The Volunteering Scheme run by Herefordshire Council has a cost implication in loss of staff 
hours.  However, this is considered a worthy investment that creates greater benefit for the 
wider county. 

Legal Implications 

14 There are no identifiable legal implications. 

Risk Management 

15 Potential risks and mitigation;  

a. That the intervention activity outlined in the action plan does not have an impact on 
increased volunteering. 
Mitigation: by people in the volunteering arena working together there is knowledge of 
what works well; though new activity will involve some risk which can be learnt from. 

b. That the Third Sector review will raise issues of consideration and concern that needs 
further analysis that will delay the implementation of the recommendations. 
Mitigation: an action includes that volunteering is included in the Third Sector review to 
be part of the wider considerations. 

c. That financial support will be withdrawn from volunteering as direct benefit of 
intervention is not evidenced. 
Mitigation: to be considered as part of the priority setting of Herefordshire Public 
Services. 

Consultees 

16 Members of the Volunteering Development Group: Alex Fitzpatrick, Chair; Tess Brooks-
Sheppard (CVALD) Vice Chair; Angela Legg (HVA); Steve Ashton (HC, Sports Development); 
Sarah Crawley (Voluntary Sector); Chris Bucknell (Herefordshire Partnership); Rosie Nunnery 
(Police); Carol Walmsley (Fire and Rescue); Kate Gathercole (New Leaf); Jo Hardwick 
(SHYPP); Peter Ding (Herefordshire Council); Will Edwards (HCVYS); Caroline Watkins 
(CYPD). 

Appendices 

17 Community Services Scrutiny Review of Support for Volunteering. 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

119



120



A
p
p
en

d
ix
 1
 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
V
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
 A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
 

R
es
p
o
n
se
 t
o
 t
h
e 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
R
ev
ie
w
 

N
o
ve
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 K
ey
: 

C
V
A
LD

: C
om

m
un
ity
 V
ol
un
ta
ry
 A
ct
io
n 
Le

db
ur
y 
an

d 
D
is
tr
ic
t 

LD
D
F
: L

ea
rn
in
g 
D
is
ab

ili
ty
 D
ev
el
op

m
en
t F

un
d 

H
P
S
: H

er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 P
ub

lic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

H
V
A
: H

er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 V
ol
un
ta
ry
 A
ct
io
n 

P
LR

S
O
: P

ar
is
h 
Li
ai
so
n 
an

d 
R
ur
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
O
ffi
ce
r 

T
S
LO

: T
hi
rd
 S
ec
to
r 
Li
ai
so
n 
O
ffi
ce
r 
(e
m
pl
oy
ed

 b
y 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 C
ou
nc
il)
 

V
D
G
: V

ol
un
te
er
in
g 
D
ev
el
op

m
en
t G

ro
up
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 1

 
F
o
r 
th
e 
V
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
 D
ev

el
o
p
m
en

t 
G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 p
ro
d
u
ce
 a
 m

ar
ke
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
ca

m
p
ai
g
n
 f
o
r 
vo

lu
n
te
er
in
g
 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 M

ar
ke
tin
g 
an

d 
aw

ar
en
es
s 
ca
m
pa
ig
n 
to
 b
e 
pr
od

uc
ed
 a
nd
 in
te
gr
at
ed
 in
to
 th

e 
V
D
G
 d
el
iv
er
y 
pl
an

. 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
M
ar
ke
tin
g 
C
am

pa
ig
n 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an

 p
ro
du
ce
d 

V
D
G
 

31
/1
1/
10

 
T
ar
ge
t i
nc
re
as
e 
of
 3
.5
%
 

ba
se
d 
on
 b
as
el
in
e 
fig
ur
e 
of
 

29
%
 (
20

08
) 

In
iti
al
 m

ar
ke
tin
g 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 

w
ith
in
 th

e 
sp
en
d 
av
ai
la
bl
e.
 

S
ee
k 
fu
nd
in
g 
to
 p
ur
su
e 
so
m
e 
of
 th
e 
ca
m
pa
ig
n 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 

T
S
LO

 
12
/1
2/
10

 
A
dd

iti
on

al
 in
co
m
e 
se
cu
re
d.
 

F
un
di
ng
 s
tr
ea

m
s 
be
in
g 
ex
pl
or
ed
. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 2

 
T
h
at
 d
is
cu

ss
io
n
s 
w
it
h
 r
ep

re
se
n
ta
ti
ve

s 
o
f 
th
e 
P
C
T
 t
ak
e 
p
la
ce
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss
 t
h
e 
is
su

e 
o
f 
ad

d
it
io
n
al
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e 
p
la
ce
m
en

t 
o
f 

vo
lu
n
te
er
s 
w
h
o
 h
av

e 
le
ar
n
in
g
 d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie
s 
o
r 
m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt
h
 c
h
al
le
n
g
es

  
E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 W

or
k 
w
ith
 th

e 
P
C
T
 a
nd
 o
th
er
s 
de
al
in
g 
w
ith
 th

is
 a
re
a 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 d
ire
ct
io
n 
an
d 
un
de

rs
ta
nd
 a
ll 
th
e 
is
su
es
.  

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
A
ct
io
ns
 in
cl
ud

ed
 in
 th

e 
V
D
G
 d
el
iv
er
y 
pl
an
. 

V
D
G
 

31
/0
3/
11

 
G
oo
d 
pr
ac
tis
e 
sc
op

in
g 

ac
hi
ev
ed

, a
nd
 g
ui
da
nc
e 

pr
od
uc
ed

 in
cl
ud

in
g 
be

tte
r 

cr
os
s 
H
P
S
 w
or
ki
ng
 a
nd
 

kn
ow

le
dg
e 
of
 fu

nd
in
g 

av
ai
la
bl
e.
 

S
co
pi
ng
 p
ro
ce
ss
 u
nd

er
w
ay
, l
is
t o

f t
ho
se
 

to
 b
e 
in
vo
lv
ed
 d
ra
w
n 
up
 in
cl
ud

in
g 

re
le
va
nt
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 o
f P

C
T
 a
nd
 

vo
lu
nt
ar
y 
se
ct
or
 

F
in
al
 r
ep

or
t s
ha
re
d 
w
ith
 s
cr
ut
in
y 
as
 to
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

T
S
LO

 
30
/0
4/
11

 
R
ep
or
t b

ac
k 
to
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
w
ith
 

an
 o
ut
lin
e 
of
 th
e 
is
su
es
. 

 

F
os
te
r 
jo
in
t w

or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 th
at
 w
or
ks
 w
ith
 

pe
op

le
 w
ith
 le
ar
ni
ng
 d
is
ab

ili
tie
s.
  

V
D
G
 

31
/0
3/
11

 
N
ew

 p
ro
je
ct
 to

 in
vo
lv
e 
10
 

pe
op

le
 w
ith
 le
ar
ni
ng
 

di
sa
bi
lit
ie
s.
 

S
ee
k 
LD

D
F
 fu

nd
in
g.
 

 

121



A
p
p
en

d
ix
 1
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 3

 
T
h
at
 
th
e 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 

to
 
vo

lu
n
te
er
 
fo
r 

tw
o
 
d
ay
s 

is
 
h
ig
h
ly
 
p
ro
m
o
te
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e 

co
u
n
ci
l’s
 
co

m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
s 

to
o
ls
 

(C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
s 
U
n
it
) 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 C
lo
se
r 
w
or
ki
ng
 b
et
w
ee
n 
V
D
G
 a
nd
 H
P
S
 w
ith
 p
ro
m
ot
io
na
l w

or
k 
w
ith
 th

e 
C
om

m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 T
ea
m
.  
E
ve
nt
s 
pl
an
ne

d 
fo
r 
al
l H

P
S
 

bu
ild
in
gs
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
an
 in
iti
al
 p
ilo
t a

t P
lo
ug
h 
La

ne
 th

is
 a
ut
um

n 
to
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
th
e 
sc
he

m
e.
 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
In
st
ig
at
e 
a 
sy
st
em

 o
f r
ec
or
di
ng

 ta
ke
 u
p 
of
 th
e 

sc
he
m
e.
 

H
R
 

co
m
pl
et
ed

 
R
ec
or
d 
of
 ta
ke
 u
p 

C
om

pl
et
ed

 

P
ilo
t p

ro
m
ot
io
n 
ev
en

t a
t P

lo
ug
h 
La
ne

 
V
D
G
 

7/
01
/1
1 

A
w
ar
en

es
s 
an
d 
gr
ea

te
r 

up
ta
ke
  

M
at
er
ia
ls
 d
ev
el
op

ed
 a
nd
 d
at
e 
id
en

tif
ie
d,
 

C
hr
is
 B
ul
l d
ia
ris
ed

 to
 a
tte

nd
. 

T
im
et
ab
le
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
ev
en

ts
 d
ev
is
ed

 
V
D
G
 

31
/0
1/
11

 
G
re
at
er
 u
pt
ak
e 

 
R
eg
ul
ar
 s
m
al
l a
rt
ic
le
s 
an

d/
or
 c
as
e 
st
ud
ie
s 
in
 F
irs
t 

P
re
ss
 e
tc
 

T
S
LO

/P
R
 

on
go

in
g 

G
re
at
er
 u
pt
ak
e 

A
rt
ic
le
 in
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 M

at
te
rs
 in
 

N
ov
em

be
r,
 s
pe
ci
fic
 a
rt
ic
le
 r
e 
sc
he
m
e 

pr
om

ot
io
n 
ev
en

t i
n 
D
ec
em

be
r.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 4

 
T
o
 i
n
cl
u
d
e 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
fo
r 
vo

lu
n
te
er
in
g
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
ym

en
t 
o
ff
er
 l
et
te
rs
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
lig

h
te
d
 o
n
 i
n
d
u
ct
io
n
 i
n
fo
rm

at
io
n
, 
w
it
h
 s
ys
te
m
s 

p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
u
p
-t
ak
e.
 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 In

du
ct
io
n 
of
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 u
nd
er
 r
ev
ie
w
 w
ith
 p
ot
en
tia
l t
o 
in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 
vo
lu
nt
ee
rin

g 
sc
he
m
e.
 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
H
R
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 s
ys
te
m
s 
an
d 
re
so
ur
ce
s 

T
S
LO

/H
R
 

12
/1
2/
10

 
P
ro
m
ot
io
n 
in
 in
du

ct
io
n 
pr
oc
es
s 

an
d 
of
fe
r 
le
tte
rs
. 

M
ee
tin
gs
 h
el
d 
w
ith
 H
R
, i
nd

uc
tio
n 

tr
ai
ne
rs
 a
w
ar
e 
of
 v
ol
un
te
er
in
g 

op
po
rt
un

ity
 a
nd

 d
is
cu
ss
in
g 
at
 th

ei
r 

m
ee
tin
g 
25
/1
0/
10
. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 5

 
T
h
at
 a
 p
ac
ka
g
e 
o
f 
o
n
e 
an

d
 t
w
o
 d
ay
 v
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
es

 a
re
 e
st
ab

lis
h
ed

 f
o
r 
te
am

s 
at
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l t
o
 v
o
lu
n
te
er
 f
o
r.
 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 T
o 
be
 d
ev
el
op

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
V
ol
un
te
er
 C
en

tr
es
 –
 n
ee
ds
 to

 b
e 
se
en
 in
 c
on

te
xt
 o
f i
nd
iv
id
ua

l c
ho

ic
e 
an
d 
in
te
re
st
 a
s 
w
el
l a
s 
ad

de
d 

va
lu
e 
fo
r 
co
m
m
un
iti
es
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
T
ea
m
s 
an
d 
in
di
vi
du

al
 s
ta
ff 
m
em

be
rs
 to
 b
e 
m
ad
e 

m
or
e 
aw

ar
e 
of
 th
e 
V
ol
un
te
er
 C
en
tr
es
 a
nd
 w
ha
t t
he

y 
pr
ov
id
e 
on
 a
n 
in
di
vi
du

al
 a
nd

 te
am

 le
ve
l. 

V
D
G
/T
S
LO

 
31
/1
2/
10

 
In
cr
ea
se
d 
nu

m
be
rs
 o
f H

C
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 

te
am

s 
ut
ili
si
ng
 V
C
s 
to
 ta

ilo
r 

vo
lu
nt
ee
rin

g 
op
po

rt
un

iti
es
 fo

r 
th
em

. 

S
ee
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
n 
nu
m
be
r 
3 

P
ac
ka
ge
s 
to
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed

 a
s 
re
qu
es
te
d 

V
ol
un
te
er
 

C
en
tr
es
/T
S
LO

 
on
go

in
g 

R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 r
eq

ue
st
s 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
th
at
 th

is
 is
 p
os
si
bl
e 

th
ro
ug

h 
F
irs
t P

re
ss
 e
tc
 

 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 6

 
T
h
at
 a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
s 
u
si
n
g
 v
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
 a
re
 e
n
co

u
ra
g
ed

 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e 
V
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
 C
o
d
e 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
m
p
ac
t.
 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 T
he
 V

D
G
 a
lre

ad
y 
ov
er
se
e 
th
e 
V
ol
un

te
er
in
g 
C
od
e 
of
 t
he
 C

om
pa
ct
 a
nd
 i
ts
 i
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
co
de

 w
ith
 a
 n
ee

d 
fo
r 
ad
di
tio
na

l 
pr
om

ot
io
n.
 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
A
dd

iti
on

al
 p
ro
m
ot
io
n 
ac
tiv
ity
 to

 p
ro
m
ot
e 
th
e 
co
de
 to

 
ou
ts
id
e 
or
ga

ni
sa
tio
ns
.  

V
D
G
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

G
re
at
er
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 

N
ov
em

be
r 
V
D
G
 m

ee
tin
g 
to
 d
is
cu
ss
 

m
os
t e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
m
et
ho
ds
. 

 

122



A
p
p
en

d
ix
 1
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 7

 
T
h
at
 a
ll 
co

u
n
ci
l s
er
vi
ce
s 
u
si
n
g
 v
o
lu
n
te
er
s 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed

 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e 
vo

lu
n
te
er
in
g
 c
o
d
e 
an

d
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
s 
to
 t
h
ei
r 
co

m
p
lia
n
ce
 

em
b
o
d
ie
d
 in

 a
 W

o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 V
o
lu
n
te
er
s 
P
o
lic

y.
 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 V
ol
un
te
er
in
g 
C
od
e 
is
 w
ith
in
 c
ur
re
nt
 p
ol
ic
y 
do
cu
m
en
ts
 b
ut
 r
eq
ui
re
s 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
aw

ar
en
es
s 
an

d 
en

fo
rc
em

en
t. 
 A
 b
al
an

ce
 b
et
w
ee

n 
en
co
ur
ag

in
g 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 fo
rm

s 
of
 e
nd
or
se
m
en
t. 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
A
dd

iti
on

al
 p
ro
m
ot
io
n 
ac
tiv
ity
 to

 p
ro
m
ot
e 
th
e 
co
de
 to

 
H
P
S
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 

V
D
G
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
11

 
G
re
at
er
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 

N
ov
em

be
r 
V
D
G
 m

ee
tin
g 
to
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n 

m
os
t e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
m
et
ho
ds
. 

C
om

pl
et
e 
au

di
t o
f s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 v
ol
un
te
er
s 

w
ith
in
 H
P
S
.  

V
D
G
/T
S
LO

 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 
B
et
te
r 
an

d 
m
or
e 
tr
ac
ke
d 

w
or
ki
ng
 p
ra
ct
is
e.
 

A
ud

it 
in
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

In
st
ig
at
e 
en
fo
rc
em

en
t m

et
ho
ds
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

ad
he
re
 to
 th

e 
co
de
. 

T
S
LO

 
Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
11

 
B
et
te
r 
an

d 
m
or
e 
tr
ac
ke
d 

w
or
ki
ng
 p
ra
ct
is
e.
 

N
ov
em

be
r 
V
D
G
 to
 d
is
cu
ss
 m

et
ho
ds
 o
f 

en
do
rs
em

en
t. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 8

 
T
h
at
 p
ar
is
h
 a
n
d
 t
o
w
n
 c
o
u
n
ci
ls
 a
re
 k
ep

t 
in
fo
rm

ed
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
th
ei
r 
lo
ca
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
to
 v
o
lu
n
te
er
.  

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
  
E
nd
or
se
 c
ur
re
nt
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 i
nc
lu
di
ng
 d
ire
ct
 c
om

m
un
ic
at
io
n 
to
 t
ow

n 
an

d 
pa
ris
h 
co
un
ci
ls
, 
an

d 
w
or
k 
co
nd
uc
te
d 
by
 C

V
A
LD

 a
nd
 

H
V
A
.  

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
P
LR

S
O
 fo

rm
ul
at
e 
en
ha

nc
ed

 c
om

m
un
ic
at
io
n 

be
tw
ee

n 
to
w
n 
an
d 
pa
ris
h 
co
un
ci
ls
 a
nd

 v
ol
un
te
er
 

ce
nt
re
 m

an
ag
er
s.
 

P
LR

S
O
 

N
ov
 2
01

0.
 

A
gr
ee

d 
co
-o
rd
in
at
ed
 

m
et
ho
d 
of
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

F
irs
t m

ee
tin
g 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 
be

tw
ee

n 
P
LR

S
O
 a
nd

 T
S
LO

, f
ur
th
er
 m

ee
tin
g 
to
 b
e 

ar
ra
ng
ed

 w
ith
 v
ol
un

te
er
 c
en

tr
es
 a
nd

 
P
LR

S
O
.  

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 9

 
T
h
at
 t
h
e 
su

p
p
o
rt
 a
g
en

ci
es

 t
ar
g
et
 l
es

s 
in
vo

lv
ed

 /
 r
es
o
u
rc
ed

 c
o
u
n
ci
ls
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss

 s
o
m
e 
o
f 
th
e 
is
su

es
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
ei
r 
co

m
m
u
n
it
y 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e 
u
se
 o
f 
vo

lu
n
te
er
in
g
 (
V
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
 D
ev

el
o
p
m
en

t 
G
ro
u
p
) 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

: C
om

m
un
ity
 L
ed
 P
la
nn
in
g 
in
cl
ud

es
 a
nd
 p
ro
m
ot
es
 th
is
 e
le
m
en
t a
nd

 w
ill
 d
o 
m
or
e 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
H
A
LC

 p
ar
t o
f t
hi
s 
w
or
k.
  I
t c
an
 a
ls
o 

fo
rm

 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 L
E
A
D
E
R
 fu

nd
ed

 lo
ca
l d
em

oc
ra
cy
 p
ro
je
ct
, w

or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
ou

nc
ils
 to

 b
et
te
r 
in
vo
lv
e 
th
ei
r 
co
m
m
un
iti
es
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
E
xt
en
si
on
 o
f t
hi
s 
pa
rt
 o
f C

LP
 a
s 
pa

rt
 o
f t
he
 o
ng

oi
ng
 

pr
oc
es
s 
to
 a
ls
o 
in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 
lo
ca
l d
em

oc
ra
cy
 p
ro
je
ct
  

C
om

m
un
ity
 L
ed

 
P
la
nn

in
g 
le
ad
s/
 

T
S
LO

 

on
go

in
g 

C
LP

s 
co
nt
in
ue
 to

 in
cl
ud

e 
vo
lu
nt
ee
rin

g 
op
tio
ns
 fo

r 
se
rv
ic
e 
de

liv
er
y.
 

A
lre

ad
y 
in
 p
ro
ce
ss
, b

ut
 fu

rt
he
r 
m
ee
tin
g 

ne
ed

ed
 w
ith
 H
A
LC

 to
 lo
ok
 a
t h
ow

 th
is
 

ca
n 
w
or
k 
be
tte
r 
an

d 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an

 n
ee

de
d.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 1
0 

T
h
at
 t
h
e 
T
h
ir
d
 S
ec
to
r 
R
ev

ie
w
 o
f 
In
fr
as
tr
u
ct
u
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
si
d
er
 t
h
e 
ro
le
s 
o
f 
o
rg
an

is
at
io
n
s 
th
at
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
o
lu
n
te
er
in
g
. 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
  T

o 
be
 p
ar
t o

f t
he
 s
co
pe
 o
f t
he

 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 b
ei
ng

 c
on
si
de

re
d.
 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
R
ev
ie
w
 in
cl
ud

es
 th
is
 in
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
nd
 fi
na

l r
ep

or
t 

D
av
id
 P
ow

el
l 

(C
ha
ir 
of
 

R
ev
ie
w
 G
ro
up
) 

7/
1/
11

 
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 c
on
si
de
re
d 
an

d 
de
ve
lo
pe

d 
w
hi
ch
 in
cl
ud

es
 a
 

fo
cu
s 
on
 v
ol
un

te
er
in
g.
 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 n
ee

ds
 a
na

ly
si
s 
m
ap
pi
ng
 

el
em

en
ts
 o
f r
ev
ie
w
 c
om

pl
et
ed
, a

na
ly
si
s 

un
de
rw
ay
. V

ol
un

te
er
in
g 
in
cl
ud

ed
 in
 th

e 
re
vi
ew

’s
 te

rm
s 
of
 r
ef
er
en
ce
. 

 

123



A
p
p
en

d
ix
 1
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 

N
o
. 1
1 

T
h
at
 
fu
rt
h
er
 
cl
ar
if
ic
at
io
n
 
o
f 
th
e 

ro
le
s 

o
f 
vo

lu
n
ta
ry
 
o
rg
an

is
at
io
n
s 

an
d
 
th
e 

re
la
ti
o
n
sh

ip
 
w
it
h
 
H
er
ef
o
rd
sh

ir
e 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

re
g
ar
d
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
tr
an

sp
o
rt
 i
s 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
w
it
h
 p
ar
ti
cu

la
r 
re
fe
re
n
ce
 t
o
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
at
io
n
 o
f 
as
se

ts
 (
T
ra
n
sp

o
rt
at
io
n
 S
er
vi
ce
) 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

’s
 

R
es
p
o
n
se

 
A
gr
ee

d.
 A
 fu

rt
he
r 
re
po

rt
 w
ill
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 th
is
 c
la
rif
ic
at
io
n,
 c
o-
or
di
na
te
d 
by
 th

e 
T
hi
rd
 s
ec
to
r 
Li
ai
so
n 
O
ffi
ce
r.
 

A
ct
io
n
 

O
w
n
er
 

B
y 
W
h
en

 
T
ar
g
et
/S
u
cc
es

s 
C
ri
te
ri
a 

P
ro
g
re
ss

 
In
te
rv
ie
w
s 
w
ith
 k
ey
 p
la
ye
rs
 in
 th

is
 fi
el
d 

T
S
LO

 
22
/1
2/
10

 
O
ve
ra
ll 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ga
th
er
ed

 
U
nd
er
w
ay
 a
s 
of
 6
/0
9/
10

 
R
ep
or
t d

el
iv
er
ed

 to
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
S
cr
ut
in
y 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
  

H
om

es
 a
nd
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

M
ar
ch
 

20
11

 
R
ep
or
t r
ec
ei
ve
d 
th
at
 

ad
dr
es
se
s 
th
e 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n.
 

 

 

124



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Jane Rose, Partnership Manager for Safer Herefordshire on (01432) 261831  

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6 DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: PROGRESS REPORT FROM THE SAFER 
HEREFORDSHIRE SCRUTINY REVIEW GROUP 

REPORT BY:   Partnership Manager for Safer Herefordshire 

 
CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Purpose 

To provide a summary of the evidence the Review Group has received and to set out the considered 
findings and recommendations to the Committee.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: The recommendations below be endorsed by the Committee, and referred to the 
Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing), for consideration. 

Key Points Summary 

• The Review Group felt that NI30 was well understood by Safer Herefordshire and performance 
and activity was well under control.  In terms of the indicators, the Review Group felt well 
assured that positive progress was being made.  

• The Review Group felt the meeting was very useful and informative.  The group has looked at 
several areas now and genuinely applauds the progress in this area.  It was recognised that 
Safer Herefordshire has hard, tangible information and intelligence which it uses to direct 
activity and so reduce the impact on society.  

Introduction and Background 

1 The Community Services Scrutiny Committee has responsibility for scrutinising the local 
Community Safety Partnership ‘Safer Herefordshire’.  To ensure this process was carried out 
effectively, a Review Group, made up of members of the main committee, was established.  
The Review Group considers a rolling programme of Safer Herefordshire activities and 
performance.  Since the last Scrutiny meeting, the Safer Herefordshire Review Group has met 
once, to review: 

• NI30 – To reduce the re-offending rate of prolific and other priority offenders   LAA 
target 

This report sets out the recommendations and findings from the Review Group meeting.   

Key Considerations 

2 The indicator above is owned by Safer Herefordshire.  The IOM (Integrated Offender 
Management) group, led by Liz Smith, Area Manager for Probation, delivers activity against 
the indicators.  

AGENDA ITEM 10

125



3 The five key principles of IOM are: 

• All partners tackling offending and risk of reoffending together; 

• Delivering a local response to local problems; 

• Offenders facing their responsibility or facing the consequences; 

• Making better use of existing  (and proven) programmes across agencies and 

• All offenders at high risk of causing serious harm and/or re-offending are in scope for 
IOM. 

4 The group needs to oversee and co-ordinate work on the 7 pathways linked to the risk of 
reoffending.  The pathways are:  accommodation; education, training and employment; health; 
drugs and alcohol; finance and debt; children and families; and attitudes, thinking and 
behaviour. 

       5 IOM will be developed further with a workshop planned for 30th November, involving a range 
of partners.  Mapping of current service and activities will be carried out.  Potential gaps and 
areas of duplication will be highlighted.  The group will be looking at who and where the repeat 
offenders are in the county and what types of crimes are being committed.  This is to ensure 
needs-led commissioning is carried out.  The workshop will also explore the key outcomes 
that should be focused on.   

6 One of the current activities commissioned was discussed in detail – SHIFT project.  SHIFT is 
a care farm project for Prolific and Priority Offenders (PPO’s).  They attend the farm and 
engage in activities such as working with animals, physical work on the land and growing 
produce.  This gives clients the structure they may never have had in their life, and can be the 
first step in their recovery, whilst motivating them and building confidence and self-esteem.  
PPO’s attend SHIFT show a clear reduction in offending behaviour and positive improvements 
in more social outcomes. 

Conclusions      

      7 Safer Herefordshire has a statutory responsibility to deliver on the reducing reoffending 
agenda under the above principles. 

      8 The Review Group noted full agency representation was yet to be achieved in this area. 

9 The IOM group will use the information from the service mapping work to develop its 
Reducing Reoffending Strategy, to be in place by April 2011.  

10 As a result of the discussions of the Review Group, the following recommendations were 
made: 

(a) applaud the success of the Shift Care Farm Programme and were 
impressed to receive clear evidence of its results. 

(b) that the Chairman of Herefordshire Policing Board be invited to 
consider, in consultation with the BCU Commander, the possibility 
of offering some degree of funding to evidently high performing 
services such as Shift Care Farm Programme. 

Community Impact 

Engagement with offenders in this way significantly reduces the impact on communities, as 
their criminal behaviour lessens. 

126



IOM encourages communities to engage with offenders in a positive manner and be part of 
their rehabilitation process and so increase the effectiveness of their re-integration into 
society. 

Financial Implications 

  There are no additional financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

   None identified. 

Risk Management 

 All partners must be fully engaged in IOM for this to be effective. 

Consultees 

Safer Herefordshire partners are consulted as projects are progressed and developed. 

Offenders are consulted around service improvements, delivery, specifications etc. 

Appendices 

 None. 

Background Papers 

Integrated Offender Management Priority Task Group Terms of Reference 

IOM Key Principles Self Assessment Tool 

IOM Government Policy Statement by Home Office 

IOM Performance against targets report 

 

127



128



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer, on 01432 383690 

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6TH DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  Democratic Services Officer 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

Recommendation 

 THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Introduction and Background 

1.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing, co-ordinating 
and approving the work programme of the Committee, and is required to periodically 
review the scrutiny committees work programmes to ensure that overview and 
scrutiny is effective, that there is an efficient use of scrutiny resources and that 
potential duplication of effort by scrutiny members is minimised.   

2.  The work programme, set out at Appendix 1, may be modified by the Chairman 
following consultation with the Vice-Chairman and the Directors in response to 
changing circumstances. 

3.  Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider 
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

4.  Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact the Democratic Services Officer to log the 
issue so that it may be taken into consideration by the Chairman when planning 
future agendas or when revising the work programme. 

Background Papers 
 
• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

129



130



 

 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

WORK PROGRAMME TO BE PRESENTED FOR CONSIDERATION ON 6 DECEMBER 2010 
 

 
 11 February 2011 

Items • Budget Monitoring 

• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  

• Safer Herefordshire Scrutiny Review Group Annual Report 
• Review of Cabinet's Response to the Review on 

Volunteering  
• Action Plan Monitoring: Review of Community and Safety 

Drugs Partnership. 

 7 March 2011 

Items • Budget Monitoring 

• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  

• Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership Scrutiny – Update 
• Action Plan Monitoring: Review of Community and Safety 

Drugs Partnership, Review of the Herefordshire Economic 
Development Strategy 2005- 25, Review of Tourism and 
Review on Volunteering. 

Scrutiny Reviews • Review of Access to Services 

• Review of Festivals 
 

Further additions to the work programme will be made as required. 
 

131



132



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager, 

Sustainable Communities Directorate, nwebster@herefordshire.gov.uk or on (01432) 260601 
  

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 6TH DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: UPDATE ON THE EDGAR STREET GRID PROJECT 

REPORT BY:  Economic Development Manager 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Purpose 

To receive a report on the progress made with the Edgar Street Grid (ESG) project. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: the report be noted; 

Key Points Summary 

• The Local Growth White Paper gives an indication of possible new financial instruments 
available to Local Government.  

• The detailed implications of any changes in structure of finance are not yet known. 

• A Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) Inquiry has been held for the Flood Alleviation Scheme 
and a report from the Planning Inspectorate is anticipated to be received after Christmas. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

1. To update the Community Services Scrutiny Committee on the Edgar Street Grid project. 

Introduction and Background 

2. The ESG area is a 100 acre redevelopment site to the North of the existing Hereford City 
Centre.  Bounded by Edgar Street to the West, the Cardiff to Shrewsbury railway line to the 
North, Commercial road to the East and Newmarket and Blueschool Streets to the South. 

3. The Scrutiny Committee Members received an update on ESG progress in April, June and 
October 2010, and all Members had further opportunity to be involved in the recent Scrutiny 
Report into the ESG proposals in November 2010.   

Key Considerations 

4. The Government White Paper on Local Growth includes a number of new financial 
mechanisms available to Local Authorities.  The potential impact on Council led projects has 
yet to be determined but may increase the number of financial options available to deliver 
ESG related projects. 

5. The Government have announced the launch of a £1.4B Regional Growth Fund, a number of 
projects within the Hereford Futures portfolio have been submitted to the Marshes Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Shadow Board as project ideas for RGF funding.   

AGENDA ITEM 12

133



Business Relocations 

6. Given that progress is being made on advancing the Retail Quarter development the 
businesses located within the current Livestock Market were contacted in early October 
regarding their tenancy and with details of available property that may have suited their 
business requirements. 

7. The Scrutiny Committee was informed in June that due to the uncertainty over funding, the 
Hereford Futures Board had decided to pause the negotiations with businesses in the second 
and third phases of the Link Road project.  The funding situation is still not clarified although 
the Regional Growth Fund and other new Local Authority financial instruments may offer 
options to resolve this situation.  The pause in negotiations is still in effect. 

Flood Alleviation Scheme 

8. Planning permission and funding for the Flood Alleviation Scheme (FAS) was gained in 
autumn last year.  Heads of Terms are in the process of being agreed with the National Trust., 
and agreement has been reached with regard to the scope of the accommodation works and 
value of the compensation package. 

9. It is anticipated that the Inspectors report from the Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) will be 
received after Christmas.    

Communication 

10. Hereford Futures and Herefordshire Council met with a number of key businesses from 
across the ESG site in late November to discuss the conduct and content of future relocation 
negotiations.   

Community Impact 

11. Not Applicable. 

Financial Implications 

12. No alteration since the previous report. 

Legal Implications 

13. None Identified. 

Risk Management 

14. No alteration since the previous report. 

Consultees 

15. None Identified. 

Appendices 

16. None identified. 

Background Papers 

21.   None identified. 

134


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT
	Budget Revenue Report Dec 6 Appendix 1 v1
	Budget capital monitoring appendix 2

	7 PERFORMANCE OUT-TURN UP TO THE END OF SEPTEMBER 2010
	Performance Appendix A Nov 10
	Performance Appendix B CSS Nov 2010

	8 REVIEW OF THIRD SECTOR SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
	Herefordshire TSSR report 251110 FINAL FINAL DRAFT for issue
	TSSSR Working Group Terms of Reference Adopted 080710

	9 EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF SUPPORT FOR VOLUNTEERING
	Volunteering Action plan response

	10 PROGRESS REPORT FROM THE SAFER HEREFORDSHIRE SCRUTINY REVIEW GROUP
	11 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
	Community Services Work Prog Dec 2010

	12 EDGAR STREET GRID - UPDATE

